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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
San Luis Obispo, California 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners (the 
Corporation), a component unit of the California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, as of June 30, 2024 and 
2023, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of Cal 
Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net position, and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the Unites States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of 
the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
3 



 4 

Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
San Luis Obispo, California 
Page 2 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may 
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  
 
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on financial statements. 
 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Corporation’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis on pages 7 through 17, Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 64, 
Schedule of Contributions – OPEB on page 66, Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios on 
page 68, and the Schedule of Contributions – Pension on page 70, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a basic part of the financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Corporation’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying supplementary information for inclusion in the 
financial statements of the California State University on pages 72 through 81 as required by the California State 
University and other supplementary information on pages 83 through 84 are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as 
a whole. 
 
The other supplementary information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 16, 2024, on our 
consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or  
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on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Glenn Burdette Attest Corporation 
San Luis Obispo, California 
 
September 16, 2024
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The Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners (“Corporation”) is an auxiliary organization of the California Polytechnic 
State University, San Luis Obispo (“University”).  The Corporation is an IRC Section 501(c)(3) not-for-profit public 
benefit organization established to provide services which complement the instructional program of the University 
and assist the institution in achieving its educational mission.   
 
This section of the Corporation’s annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial 
performance of the Corporation during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 (“2023-24”), June 30, 2023 (“2022-23”), 
and June 30, 2022 (“2021-22”).  This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction 
with and is qualified in its entirety by the accompanying audited financial statements and notes.  The financial 
statements presented here are incorporated into the University’s financial statements as a component unit. 
 
Introduction to the Financial Statements 
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with principles issued by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).  For reporting purposes, the Corporation is considered a special-
purpose government engaged in business-type activities which best represent the activities of the Corporation as an 
auxiliary organization of the University. 
 
The financial statements include the Statements of Net Position; the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows.  These statements provide information about the Corporation’s 
financial position as a whole and the results of activities on that position for each year presented.  These statements 
are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes 
expenses when incurred and revenues when earned rather than when payment is made or received.  They are 
supported by the Notes to Financial Statements and this section.  All sections must be considered together to obtain a 
complete understanding of the financial picture of the Corporation. 
 
Statements of Net Position:  The Statements of Net Position include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of the Corporation reported at their recorded value, as of the statement date.  Net position - the 
difference between assets plus deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows - is one way to measure the 
Corporation’s financial health, or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position can be an 
indicator as to whether the Corporation’s financial health is improving or declining.   
 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position:  The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position present the revenues earned and expenses incurred during the year.   
 
Statements of Cash Flows:  The Statements of Cash Flows present the inflows and outflows of cash for the year and 
are summarized by operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities.  The 
statements are prepared using the direct method of cash flows, and therefore, present gross rather than net amounts 
for the years’ activities. 
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Analytical Overview 
 
Summary 
The following discussion highlights management’s understanding of the key financial aspects of the Corporation’s 
financial activities for the fiscal years 2023-24, 2022-23, and 2021-22.  The accompanying audited financial statements 
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are reported in accordance with standards and requirements of 
the GASB, as are the following schedules. 
 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 

 

2024 2023 2022
Assets:

Current assets $ 125,953,373         $ 108,846,019         $ 96,646,746           
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net 162,456,585         119,174,156         93,442,842           
Other noncurrent assets 64,294,690           47,386,688           51,616,742           

Total assets 352,704,648         275,406,863 241,706,330

Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,325,282    11,687,404    3,489,911   

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 68,722,421           41,321,791           20,836,217           
Noncurrent liabilities 80,328,948           79,619,550           66,347,499           

Total liabilities 149,051,369         120,941,341 87,183,716

Deferred Inflows of Resources 46,493,770    22,360,669    28,219,337   

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 75,496,044           54,389,979           38,957,807           
Restricted, expendable 13,523,635           20,650,321           18,368,127           
Unrestricted 77,465,112           68,751,957           72,467,254           

Total net position $ 166,484,791         $ 143,792,257 $ 129,793,188         

June 30, 

 
 
Net Position 
Net position may serve over time as an indicator of the Corporation’s financial position.  As of June 30, 2024, assets 
and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $166.5 million, resulting in an increase of $23 
million in net position from the prior year.  The increase primarily represents the net result of a $14.7 million 
operating loss combined with net nonoperating revenues of $27.3 million and capital grants and gifts of $10.1 million.  
For the year ended June 30, 2023, overall net position increased $14 million.  The increase primarily represents the net 
result of an $19.4 million operating loss combined with net nonoperating revenues of $28.1 million and capital grants 
and gifts of $5.3 million.  Operating losses reflected on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position are primarily the result of the classification of gifts as nonoperating revenues.  A majority of these gifts are 
meant to be University programs support expenses, which are classified as operating expenses. Without these gifts, 
the related University programs support expenses would not occur.   
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Net investment in capital assets represents the Corporation’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
amortization, and also net of outstanding balances of related debt.  The Corporation uses these capital assets in its 
day-to-day operations.  For the year ended June 30, 2024, net investment in capital assets increased $21.1 million or 
38.8% from the prior year.  During 2023-24, capital asset purchases exceeded the combination of capital asset 
disposals and depreciation and amortization expense on existing capital assets.  Capital asset additions primarily relate 
to construction-in-progress for the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining facility, along with the purchase of a 
48,000 square foot commercial property located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California, commonly referred to as the 
Cal Poly Mustang Business Park (CPMBP).  For the year ended June 30, 2023, net investment in capital assets increased 
$15.4 million or 39.6% from the prior year.  During 2022-23, capital asset purchases exceeded the combination of 
capital asset disposals and depreciation and amortization expense on existing capital assets.  
 
Restricted, expendable represents the portion of the Corporation’s net position that is restricted by donors or by law.  
The following table summarizes at year end which funds are restricted, the type of restriction, and the amount: 
 

2024 2023 2022
Restricted, expendable:

Research $ 58,076                 $ 115,863               $ 92,214                 
Capital projects 52,449                 259,534               533,121               
Instruction 3,020,348           3,783,275           5,780,533           
Academic support 810,067               552,994               623,763               
Student services 3,106,099           8,687,048           4,054,172           
Other 6,476,596           7,251,607           7,284,324           

Total restricted, expendable $ 13,523,635         $ 20,650,321 $ 18,368,127         

Year Ended June 30, 

 
 
This balance can fluctuate from year to year based on the level of gift activity and expenditures.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2024, overall restricted, expendable net position decreased $7.1 million or 34.5% from the prior year.  The 
decrease is primarily the result of a $5.6 million decrease in net position restricted for student services. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, overall restricted, expendable net position increased $2.3 million or 12.4% from the 
prior year.  The increase is primarily the result of a $4.6 million increase in net position restricted for student services 
offset by a $2 million decrease in net position restricted for instruction.   
 
Gifts and pledges received are often restricted by their donors.  Fluctuations in restricted, expendable net position are 
based on the timing of project expenditures in relation to the receipt of gifts and other funds. 
 
Unrestricted represents the portion of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations of the 
Corporation without constraints established by donor restrictions, debt covenants or other legal requirements.  
Although unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed restrictions per accounting definitions, 
significant portions of unrestricted net position are designated for specific programs or projects.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2024, unrestricted net position increased by $8.7 million to $77.5 million from the prior year.  The increase 
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was driven by a $10.5 million return across all Corporation investments.  For the year ended June 30, 2023, 
unrestricted net position decreased by $3.7 million to $68.8 million from the prior year.  The decrease was driven by 
capital expenditures, including the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining facility offset by a $5.7 million return 
across all Corporation investments.    
 
Assets  
Current assets represent assets that can normally be converted to cash in less than one year, including cash and cash 
equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, contracts and grants receivable, inventories, prepaid 
expenses and the current portion of pledges receivable.   
 
Cash and cash equivalents are generally held in checking and money market accounts.  All highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity date of three months or less are also classified as cash and cash equivalents.  Please refer to 
the Statement of Cash Flows for more information regarding changes in cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Accounts receivable, net increased $8 million or 259% from the prior year.  During 2023-24, approximately $5.5 million 
of California State University (CSU) Institute Commercial Paper Notes were issued to the university on behalf of the 
Corporation for renovation of the CPMBP, a 48,000 square foot commercial property purchased by the Corporation 
during the fiscal year.  Funds were deposited into a university account and a corresponding receivable was recorded 
on the Corporation’s Statement of Net Position.   
 
Contracts and grants receivable, net represents revenue earned but not received from work performed under contract 
and grants.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, contracts and grants receivable, net increased $3.4 million or 
37.2% from the prior year.  Changes in contracts and grants receivable, net, are dependent on the timing of revenues 
earned and payments received.  Overall contract and grants expenditures increased during 2023-24 to $38.9 million, 
compared to $34.4 million for 2022-23. 
 
Noncurrent assets consist primarily of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments and charitable gift 
annuities, pledges receivable not expected to be collected within one year, endowment and other long-term 
investments and capital assets, net of depreciation.  Investments that are restricted for withdrawal or to be used for 
other than current operations, including endowments and charitable gift annuities, are classified as other long-term 
investments.  
 
Note receivable, net of $641,000 represents draws on the line-of-credit extended from the Corporation to the College 
of Agriculture, Food, & Environmental Sciences for construction of the JUSTIN and J. LOHR Center for Wine and 
Viticulture.  The line-of-credit agreement requires quarterly interest payments, with all outstanding principal and 
interest originally due and payable on the expiration date, June 30, 2024.  On September 11, 2024, the Corporation 
executed an amendment to the line-of-credit agreement, extending the due date to June 30, 2025. 
 
Lease Receivable, net represents the present value of the lease payments expected to be received over various lease 
terms where the Corporation acts as lessor, and is accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.   
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The balance increased $25.6 million from the prior year.  During 2023-24, the Corporation entered into a lease 
agreement with the university for their exclusive use of the CPMBP, a 48,000 square foot commercial property 
purchased by the Corporation during the fiscal year, creating a lease receivable balance of $26.2 million at June 30, 
2024 related to that property. 
 
Pledges receivable, net decreased $2.4 million or 28% from the prior year primarily.  Changes in pledges receivable, 
net, are dependent on the timing of pledges made and payments received.  Pledge amounts expected to be collected 
within one year are classified as current assets.  The change in 2023-24 is reflective of any increases because of new 
pledges being offset by amounts reclassified to current assets.  
 
Investments used for current operations are classified as Short-term investments, which primarily includes the 
Corporation’s Corporate Pool.  Endowment Investments represent individual endowments held on behalf of other 
entities. Investments restricted from withdrawal or designated for the acquisition or construction of capital assets are 
classified as Other long-term investments, which primarily includes securities in the Corporation’s Internal Fund, OPEB 
Investment Pool, and charitable gift annuities held for others.  Endowment investments increased $3.2 million from 
the prior year.  The increase is primarily the result of a $3 million endowment received on behalf of the College of 
Food and Environment Sciences.  Other long-term investments decreased $9.5 million or 28% from the prior year.  The 
decrease was primarily the result of $9 million in liquidations from the internal investment fund, which was primarily 
used to support the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining facility.  
 
Capital assets, net include land, buildings, leasehold improvements, construction-in-progress, equipment and 
intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting 
period.  The Corporation held $43.4 million of non-depreciable assets at June 30, 2024, compared to $63.1 million at 
June 30, 2023.  Non-depreciable capital assets primarily consist of land and improvements and construction-in-
progress.  The change in non-depreciable assets during 2023-24 primarily relates to the completion of the renovation 
of the Corporation’s central dining facility, which was placed in service during the fiscal year. 
 
At June 30, 2024, the Corporation held $162.5 million in depreciable and amortizable assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, as compared to $119.1 million in the prior year.  During 2023-24, the Corporation purchased the CPMBP, 
a 48,000 square foot commercial property located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California, for $16.8 million.  In 
addition, construction-in-progress related to the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining facility of $46.1 million 
was completed and placed in service.  During 2023-24, depreciation and amortization expense on existing capital 
assets totaled $5.3 million.  
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources  
Deferred Outflows of Resources at June 30, 2024 includes contributions made by the Corporation to its pension plan 
and OPEB plan during 2023-24.  In addition, deferred outflows of resources includes changes in the net pension 
liability and net OPEB liability as a result of differences between actual and expected earnings on plan investments, 
along with other adjustments to actuarial measurements.  Deferred outflows of resources are recognized as expense 
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in future periods.  Finally, deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2024 includes a deferred loss on the refunding of 
a portion of the Cal State University (CSU) System-Wide Revenue Bonds (SRB) Series 2009A. 
 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities, or amounts owed or due within one year, consist of accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits 
payable, unearned revenue, sponsored programs receipts over expenditures and other liabilities.   
 
Accounts payable decreased $4.1 million or 29% from the prior year.  Changes in accounts payable are dependent on 
the timing of expenses incurred and payment made.  The June 30, 2023 balance included accounts payable of $8.4 
million due to the University for expenses incurred for the renovation of the Corporation’s central facility.  At June 30, 
2024, this payable balance is $1.4 million. 
 
Accrued salaries and benefits payable decreased by $1.1 million or 40% from the prior year.  Effective July 1, 2023, the 
Corporation entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party to provide certain services for the Corporation’s 
campus dining service program.  As part of the agreement, the unrelated third party became the employer of record 
for all campus dining service employees.  Accordingly, accrued salaries and benefits payable at June 30, 2024 no 
longer includes an accrual related to these individuals. 
 
Unearned revenue includes meal plan contracts received and recorded for the upcoming academic year.  As meal 
plans are consumed during the year, revenue is recognized and the unearned revenue balance declines.  For the year 
ended June 30, 2024 unearned revenue increased approximately $1.7 million or 10% from the prior year.  This 
increase reflects an increase in freshmen enrollment for the upcoming academic year, along with meal plan price 
increases for the 2024-25 academic year to offset current economic conditions.  In addition, students are offered the 
ability to keep leftover dining funds if they purchased a voluntary meal plan for the next academic year.  As a result, 
more returning students purchased voluntary meal plans to capture leftover funds from the prior year.   
 
Noncurrent liabilities consist primarily of long-term debt, deposits held in custody for others (including endowments), 
the net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability, the net pension liability, and charitable gift annuities held for 
others. 
 
The Corporation’s Long-term debt obligation (current and noncurrent) of $65 million at June 30, 2024 represents a 
note payable to the CSU, which originated as part of the SRB Series 2009A issuance to partially fund the construction 
of the Technology Park.  During 2016-17, the note payable was amended in connection with a partial defeasance with 
proceeds from the issuance of the SRB Series 2016A.  On July 1, 2017, the Corporation amended the note payable a 
second time to partially fund the construction of the new Vista Grande dining facility with CSU Institute Commercial 
Paper Notes as an interim source of financing.  On August 1, 2018, the Corporation entered into a third amendment to 
the note payable, which replaced the commercial paper notes with proceeds from the issuance of the SRB Series 
2018A.  One July 1, 2021, the Corporation amended the note payable a fourth time to partially fund the renovation of 
its central dining facility with proceeds from the issuance of the SRB Series 2021A.   Effective September 1, 2023, the 
Corporation entered into a fifth amendment to the note payable related to proceeds borrowed from the issuance of 
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CSU Institute Commercial Paper Notes as an interim source of financing for the purchase of CPMBP, a 48,000 square 
foot commercial property located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California.  It is anticipated that the CSU Institute 
Commercial Paper Notes will be replaced with proceeds from the issuance of the SRB Series 2024A during fiscal year 
2024-25.   
 
The noncurrent portion of the note payable outstanding as of June 30, 2024 includes bond premiums of $253,000, 
$3.5 million, and $2 million related to the issuance of the SRB Series 2016A, 2018A, and 2021A respectively.  The 
Corporation made aggregate principal payments in the amount of $750,000 on this debt during 2023-24.  
 
The Net OPEB liability is related to the Corporation’s defined benefit postretirement plan, which provides medical 
benefits to retirees of the Corporation.  The net OPEB liability is measured as the total OPEB liability, less the value of 
assets in the VEBA trust on that date.  The net OPEB liability is measured as of June 30, 2023, using an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2022.  Based on the most recent actuarial report, the total OPEB liability measured as of 
June 30, 2023 was $28.4 million and the value of assets in the VEBA trust on that date was $26.2 million.  
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources  
Deferred Inflows of Resources at June 30, 2024 includes changes in the net pension liability resulting from differences 
between actual and expected actuarial experience.  In addition, deferred outflows of resources includes changes in 
the net OPEB liability resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions, and differences between actual and expected 
actuarial experience.  Deferred inflows of resources are recognized as expense in future periods. 
 
In 2014-15, the Corporation was gifted the Bartleson Ranch and Conservatory, valued at $11.3 million, subject to the 
terms of a life-interest agreement.  Deferred inflows of resources of $10.9 million are included on the Statement of 
Net Position at June 30, 2024, to reflect the deferral of income related to this gift until the expiration of the life-
interest term.  Finally, deferred inflows of resources related to leases represent resources that will provide a future 
economic benefit and are accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
 
Results of Operations 
Increase in net position for 2023-24 was $22.7 million as compared to an increase in net position of $14 million for 
2022-23.  The increase for 2023-24 primarily represents the net result of an $14.7 million operating loss combined 
with net nonoperating revenues of $27.3 million and capital grants and gifts of $10.1 million.  Net nonoperating 
revenues include net investment income of $10.5 million combined with noncapital gifts of $7.4 million, interest 
expense of $2.1 million, and other net nonoperating revenues of $11.6 million.  The increase for 2022-23 primarily 
represents the net result of an $19.4 million operating loss combined with net nonoperating revenues of $28.1 million 
and capital grants and gifts of $5.3 million.  Net nonoperating revenues include net investment income of $5.7 million 
combined with noncapital gifts of $13.1 million, interest expense of $1.5 million, and other net nonoperating revenues 
of $10.8 million.  As mentioned previously, operating losses are primarily the result of the classification of gifts as 
nonoperating revenues.  A majority of these gifts are meant to be University programs support expenses, which are 
classified as operating expenses.   
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
  

2024 2023 2022
Operating revenues:

Grants and contracts $ 37,486,980         $ 31,095,457         $ 24,981,038         
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 52,632,791         44,155,879         39,629,927         
Fees for services 10,521,262         9,164,422           9,325,920           
University programs support 5,302,735           5,481,495           4,229,811           
Conference and workshop revenues 3,131,936           2,981,112           2,791,725           
Other operating revenue 3,792,576           2,601,120           4,637,712           

Total operating revenues 112,868,280       95,479,485         85,596,133         

Operating expenses:
Corporation administration 7,515,489           6,647,990           5,749,373           
Contract and grant expense 36,663,162         34,234,944         28,523,891         
Auxiliary activities cost of sales 17,020,318         14,599,505         12,635,841         
Auxiliary activities expense 34,553,974         24,726,643         20,361,924         
University programs support 21,465,325         27,867,946         18,907,730         
Sponsored program administration 1,550,377           1,389,225           1,144,862           
Depreciation and amortization 5,260,153           4,168,730           3,943,760           
Other operating expenses 3,520,159           1,231,582           693,418               

Total operating expense 127,548,957       114,866,565       91,960,799         

Operating loss (14,680,677)        (19,387,080)        (6,364,666)          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gifts, noncapital 7,386,371           13,104,686         9,790,494           
Investment income, net 10,451,939         5,719,863           (10,896,359)        
Interest expense (2,143,052)          (1,528,460)          (1,588,387)          
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 11,559,980         10,839,085         (216,064)             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 27,255,238         28,135,174         (2,910,316)          

Other changes in net position:
Capital grants and gifts 10,117,973         5,250,975           8,875,502           

Increase (decrease) in net position 22,692,534         13,999,069         (399,480)             
  

Beginning net position 143,792,257       129,793,188       130,192,668       

Ending net position $ 166,484,791       $ 143,792,257       $ 129,793,188       

Year Ended June 30,
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Operating revenues increased $17.4 million or 18.2% in 2023-24 as compared to 2022-23.  The change includes an 
$8.5 million increase in Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises primarily driven by an increase in campus dining 
program sales. 
 
In addition to the increase in Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, Grants and contracts increased $6.4 million or 
11.4% primarily driven by increases in sponsored project activity in the federal and state sectors .  Fees for services 
also increased $1.4 million or 14.8% from the prior year, driven by an increase in indirect cost recovery and fee for 
service charges to grants and contracts.  Finally, Other operating revenues increased $1.2 million, or 45.8% over the 
prior year.  The increase includes rents received from the university for its use of CPMPB, a 48,000 square foot 
commercial property located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California.      
 
Operating revenues increased $9.9 million or 11.5% in 2022-23 as compared to 2021-22.  The change is driven by a 
$6.1 million increase in Grants and contracts driven by increases in sponsored project activity in the federal and state 
sectors. In addition to the increase in Grants and contracts, Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises increased $4.5 
million or 11.4% primarily driven by a $3.8 million increase in campus dining program sales.   
 
University programs support also increased $1.3 million or 29.6% from the prior year.  This increase was primarily 
driven by increases in revenue of approximately $346,000 from Center & Institutes, $294,000 from Athletic royalties, 
and $214,000 from various special activity accounts.  Also, included in university programs support are ticket sales for 
performances presented by Cal Poly Arts which saw an increase of $131,000 in 2022-23 over the prior year. 
 
Offsetting the increases in operating revenues mentioned above, Other operating revenues decreased $2.0 million, or 
43.9% in 2022-23 as compared to 2021-22.  The decrease is primarily driven by actuarial losses related to the 
Corporation’s net OPEB and net pension liabilities.  In 2021-22, the actuarial study resulted in actuarial gains related to 
the net OPEB and net pension liabilities, which were included in Other operating revenues.  The 2022-23 actuarial 
losses are driven by differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments and are included in other 
operating expenses.    
 
Operating expenses increased $12.7 million or 11% in 2023-24 as compared to 2022-23.  The change includes a $2.4 
million increase in Auxiliary activities cost of sales and a $9.8 million increase in Auxiliary activities expense.  The 
increase in both categories primarily relates to campus dining operations, which follows the increase in revenues 
previously mentioned.  In addition, Contract and grant expense increased $2.4 million, which also follows the increase 
in Grant and contract revenues previously mentioned.  Further, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $1.1 
million or 26.2% from the prior year.  This increase was primarily driven by the additions of the CPMBP and the 
completion of the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining facility, which were both placed in service during the 
fiscal year and began depreciating.   Finally, Other operating expenses increased approximately $2.3 million or 29.6% 
from the prior year.  This increase was primarily driven by an increase in GASB 68 pension expense, based on the most 
recent valuation from CalPERs. 
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Offsetting the increases in operating expenses mentioned above, University programs support expense decreased $6.4 
million or 23% in 2023-24 as compared to 2022-23.  In the prior year, the Corporation made a $7 million disbursement 
to the University for contributions towards the construction of the William and Linda Frost Center for Research and 
Innovation building.  As this was a one-time contribution in the prior year, University programs support expense 
decreased in the current year.   
 
Operating expenses increased $22.9 million or 24.9% in 2022-23 as compared to 2021-22.  The change includes a $1.9 
million increase in Auxiliary activities cost of sales and a $4.4 million increase in Auxiliary activities expense.  The 
increase in both categories primarily relates to Campus Dining operations, which follows the increase in revenues 
previously mentioned.  In addition, Contract and grant expense increased $5.7 million, which also follows the increase 
in Grant and contract revenues previously mentioned.  Further, University programs support expense increased $9 
million or 47.4% in 2022-23 as compared to 2021-22.  The increase is primarily from a $7 million disbursement to the 
University for contributions towards the construction of the William and Linda Frost Center for Research and 
Innovation building.  Corporation administration increased $899,000 or 15.6% in 2022-23 as compared to prior year.  
The increase from 2021-22 is primarily the result of implementing the results of a comprehensive compensation study 
combined with a board-approved 2% general salary increase.   
 
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) consists primarily of noncapital gifts, investment income, and interest expense 
on CSU SRBs.   
 
Gifts, noncapital decreased $5.7 million or 43.6% in 2023-24 as compared to 2022-23, primarily as a result of 
decreases in pledges received on behalf of athletics.  In 2022-23, noncapital gifts increased $3.3 million or 33.9% as 
compared to 2021-22, primarily as a result of increases in pledges received on behalf of athletics.  In 2022-23, 
approximately $6 million in gifts were to received construct the Tennis Pavilion.   
 
Investment income, net in 2023-24 was $10.5 million as compared to net investment income of $5.7 million in 2022-
23.  Investment income, net is primarily the result of $4.9 million in interest and dividends combined with $5.5 million 
in market value gains offset by $144,000 in investment management fees.  In 2022-23 net investment income, net was 
primarily the result of $3.5 million in interest and dividends combined with $2.7 million in market value gains offset by 
$153,000 in investment management fees.   
 
Interest expense represents interest recorded on the long-term debt obligation.  As mentioned previously, the 
Corporation’s long-term debt obligation of $65 million at June 30, 2024 represents a note payable, which originated as 
part of the SRB Series 2009A bond issuance to partially fund the construction of the Technology Park.  During 2018-19, 
the note payable was amended in connection with the issuance of the SRB Series 2018A to partially fund the 
construction of the new Vista Grande dining facility.  During 2021-22, the note payable was amended again in 
connection with the issuance of SRB Series 2021A to partially fund the renovation of the Corporation’s central dining 
facility. Finally, during 2023-24, the note payable was amended again to facilitate the purchase of CPMBP, a 48,000 
square foot commercial property located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California with CSU Institute Commercial Paper 
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Notes.  It is anticipated that the CSU Institute Commercial Paper Notes will be replaced with proceeds from the 
issuance of the SRB Series 2024A during fiscal year 2024-25.   
 
Other nonoperating revenues, net in 2023-24 include insurance proceeds received to cover losses incurred at Swanton 
Pacific Ranch resulting from CZU Lightning Complex fire in August 2020, and insurance proceeds received to cover 
losses from a rain event that damage the first floor of the Corporation’s central dining facility.  In addition, Other 
nonoperating revenues, net in 2023-24 include a claim settlement received related to the construction of Vista 
Grande.  Other nonoperating revenues, net increased $11.1 million in 2022-23 as compared to 2021-2022.  During 
2022-23, the Corporation received $10.2 million in insurance proceeds from a rain event that damaged the first floor 
of the Corporation’s central dining facility.  All insurance proceeds related to the rain event have gone towards the 
renovation of that facility. 
 
Other changes in net position consists of capital grants and gifts, which increased $4.9 million or 92.7% in 2023-24 as 
compared to the prior year.  The increase includes capital grants and gifts received towards the renovation of the 
Corporation’s central dining facility and the construction of the Tech Park Phase II building.  Capital grants and gifts 
decreased by $3.6 million or 40.8% in 2022-23 as compared to the prior year.  In 2021-22 a property located in Mount 
Vernon, Washington was gifted to the Corporation with a value of $3 million. Variances in capital grants and gifts are 
due to the varying nature of contribution revenue from year to year, which depends on a number of factors, both 
internal and external.  
 
Currently Known Facts Impacting Future Periods 
 
The Corporation has begun the construction of additional workforce housing.  The project, commonly known as Vista 
Meadows, consists of 33 single family units and will be located toward the entrance of campus on Grand Avenue.  
Construction of the units is expected to be completed in fiscal year 2025-26.  A portion of this project is financed with 
proceeds a revolving credit agreement with an unrelated third-party bank. The agreement carries an initial term of 
three years and allows the Corporation to borrow up to $20,000,000.  The outstanding balance owed at June 30, 2024 
was $0.  Completion of the project will also be accompanied by significant capital outlay expenditures.  The project is 
expected to have a material impact on the Corporation’s Statements of Net Position. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

2024 2023
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 21,696,546$            21,449,017$              
Short-term investments 71,162,946 65,567,307
Accounts receivable, net 11,416,566 3,088,813
Contracts and grants receivable, net 14,246,726 10,385,809
Note receivable 640,785                   2,563,307                  
Lease receivable 1,129,349                294,168
Pledges receivable, net 2,657,874 2,572,371
Inventories 1,586,600 1,613,071
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,415,981 1,312,156

Total current assets 125,953,373            108,846,019              

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 79,155 60,794
Accounts receivable, net 24,433 24,433
Lease receivable, net 27,858,776              2,245,766
Pledges receivable, net 6,054,903 8,412,641
Endowment investments 5,560,528 2,408,112
Other long-term investments 24,393,895 33,911,942
Capital assets, net 162,456,585 119,174,156
Other assets 323,000 323,000

Total noncurrent assets 226,751,275            166,560,844              

Total assets 352,704,648            275,406,863              

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unamortized loss on refunding 166,959                   182,032                      
Related to net other postemployment benefit liability 2,492,945                2,803,638                  
Related to net pension liability 6,665,378                8,701,734                  

Total deferred outflows of resources 9,325,282                11,687,404                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
Page 2 
 

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 10,005,244$            14,135,763$              
Accrued salaries and benefits payable 1,657,529                2,771,131                  
Accrued compensated absences 1,038,646                929,562                      
Unearned revenue 18,330,913              16,623,321                
Sponsored programs receipts over expenditures 6,406,613                5,686,478                  
Lease liability 244,614                   230,998                      
Subscription liability 337,133                   174,541                      
Long-term debt obligation 23,995,000              750,000                      
Short-term notes payable 6,696,732                
Self-insurance claims liability 9,997                        19,997                        

Total current liabilities 68,722,421              41,321,791                

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net of current 195,239                   
Lease liability, net 2,255,961                2,500,613                  
Subscription liability, net 28,394                      217,915                      
Long-term debt obligation 41,283,259              42,306,854                
Deposits held in custody for others 6,124,871                5,862,887                  
Net other postemployment benefit liability 2,181,527                1,113,608                  
Net pension liability 27,304,639              26,683,204                
Charitable gift annuities held for others liability 955,058                   934,469                      

Total noncurrent liabilities 80,328,948              79,619,550                

Total liabilities 149,051,369            120,941,341              

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to life-interest in real estate 10,898,600              10,905,490                
Related to leases 28,464,032              2,435,274                  
Related to net other postemployment benefit liability 7,051,682                8,340,497                  
Related to net pension liability 79,456                      679,408                      

Total deferred inflows of resources 46,493,770              22,360,669                

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 75,496,044              54,389,979                
Restricted for:

Expendable:
Research 58,076                      115,863                      
Capital projects 52,449                      259,534                      
Instruction 3,020,348                3,783,275                  
Academic support 810,067                   552,994                      
Student services 3,106,099                8,687,048                  
Other 6,476,596                7,251,607                  

Unrestricted 77,465,112              68,751,957                

Total net position 166,484,791$         143,792,257$            
                                                                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 21 

Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

2024 2023
Operating revenues:

Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal 23,237,091$        18,304,754$             
State 9,820,366             8,354,004                 
Local 607,672                471,679                    
Nongovernmental 3,821,851             3,965,020                 

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 52,632,791          44,155,879               
Fees for services 10,521,262          9,164,422                 
University programs support 5,302,735             5,481,495                 
Conference and workshop revenues 3,131,936             2,981,112                 
Other operating revenues 3,792,576             2,601,120                 

Total operating revenues 112,868,280        95,479,485               

Operating expenses:
Corporation administration 7,515,489             6,647,990                 
Contract and grant expenses 36,663,162          34,234,944               
Auxiliary activities cost of sales 17,020,318          14,599,505               
Auxiliary activities expenses 34,553,974          24,726,643               
University programs support:

Conference and workshops expense 3,200,999             2,775,678                 
Public service support 6,859,855             8,898,987                 
Institutional support 5,359,547             11,349,420               
Academic support 1,048,756             911,137                    
Student services 2,380,545             1,011,744                 
Other University programs 2,615,623             2,920,980                 

Sponsored programs administration 1,550,377             1,389,225                 
Depreciation and amortization 5,260,153             4,168,730                 
Other operating expenses 3,520,159             1,231,582                 

Total operating expenses 127,548,957        114,866,565             

Operating loss (14,680,677)         (19,387,080)              

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gifts, noncapital 7,386,371$          13,104,686$             
Investment income (loss), net 10,451,939          5,719,863                 
Interest expense (2,143,052)           (1,528,460)                
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 11,559,980          10,839,085               

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 27,255,238          28,135,174               

Other changes in net position:
Capital grants and gifts 10,117,973          5,250,975                 

Total other changes in net position 10,117,973          5,250,975                 

Increase (decrease) in net position 22,692,534          13,999,069               

Net position - beginning of year 143,792,257        129,793,188             

Net position - end of year 166,484,791$      143,792,257$          
                                                             

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from grants and contracts 33,229,691$       29,424,210$       
Receipts from sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 50,938,322          58,570,278          
Receipts from fees for services 10,521,262          9,164,422            
Receipts from University programs 5,302,735            5,481,495            
Payments to vendors (51,596,331)        (38,172,836)        
Payments for employees (34,077,523)        (41,013,720)        
Payments to University, net (30,300,229)        (42,775,268)        
Payments to Foundation, net (1,760,084)           341,157               
Payments to VEBA Trust, net 664,871               641,443               
Other receipts 3,792,576            2,758,442            
Other payments (103,825)              (236,179)              

Net cash used in operating activities (13,388,535)        (15,816,556)        

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash contributions received 9,510,530            10,643,542          
Cash received for charitable gift annuities held for others 77,338                  10,000                  
Distributions to annuity beneficiaries (96,071)                (107,319)              
Fees and expenses of charitable gift annuities held for others (9,516)                  (5,936)                  
Foundation support 442,311               442,311               
Change in depository accounts 261,984               344,364               
Other payments 6,755,604            10,954,401          

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 16,942,180          22,281,363          

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and gifts 10,421,826          5,333,635            
Acquisition of capital assets (36,223,229)        (8,641,879)           
Insurance proceeds 5,796,551            
Proceeds from short-term notes 6,950,000            
Repayments of short-term notes (253,268)              
Interest paid on long-term debt obligation (1,742,847)           (1,756,107)           
Defeasance of long-term obligation (750,000)              (495,000)              

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (15,800,967)        (5,559,351)           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 16,698,464          7,951,856            
Purchase of investments (10,769,320)        (17,897,712)        
Investment income proceeds 4,661,546            3,018,798            
Note receivable issuance 1,922,522            1,100,000            

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12,513,212          (5,827,058)           

Net increase (decrease) in cash 265,890               (4,921,602)           

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 21,509,811          26,431,413          

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 21,775,701$       21,509,811$       
                                                             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
Page 2 
 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to Statements of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 21,696,546$       21,449,017$       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 79,155                  60,794                  

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 21,775,701$       21,509,811$       
                                                            

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss (14,680,677)$      (19,387,080)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,260,153            4,168,730            
Bad debt 2,087                    10,481                  
Loss on disposal of assets 230,196               -                        
Other noncash expenses 373,917               344,126               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
     Accounts receivable, net (30,133,274)        (21,264,237)        
     Inventories 26,471                  235,173               
     Prepaid expenses and other current assets (103,825)              (236,179)              
     Accounts payable (4,373,703)           10,775,391          
     Accounts payable - University 227,983               (911,531)              
     Accounts payable - Foundation (2,705)                  2,030                    
     Accrued salaries and benefits payable (1,113,602)           (125,108)              
     Accrued compensated absences 304,323               (118,166)              
     Self-insurance claims liability (10,000)                -                        
     Unearned revenue 27,736,350          8,803,226            
     Grants refundable 720,135               1,448,150            
     Net OPEB liability 1,067,919            1,100,845            
     Net pension liability 621,435               13,114,617          
     Deferred outflow and inflows 458,282               (13,777,024)        

Net cash used in operating activities (13,388,535)$      (15,816,556)$      
                                                            

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Contributions of investments 571,213$             501,329$             
Other noncash contributions 1,503,051            1,521,034            
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 5,730,367            2,782,050            
Acquisition of capital assets from proceeds of debt 16,800,000          3,132,317            
Amortization of net bond premium 238,595               238,594               
Amortization of loss on debt refunding 15,073                  15,073                   

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cal Poly Corporation VEBA Trust – Fiduciary Activity 

Statements of Fiduciary Net Position  
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

2024 2023
Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 191,383$              162,455$                
Investments

Equity 15,491,224          15,080,926             
Fixed income 11,629,258          11,004,310             

27,120,482 26,085,236

Accounts Receivable 23 22

Total assets 27,311,888          26,247,713             

Liabilities
Accounts payable 28,459                  13,988                    

Net position restricted for other postemployment benefits 27,283,429$        26,233,725$          
                                                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Cal Poly Corporation VEBA Trust – Fiduciary Activity 
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position  

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

2024 2023
Additions

Contributions:
Employer contributions 311,580$            335,744$               

Total contributions 311,580               335,744                 

Investment income:
Investment earnings and dividends, net of fees 764,609               714,888                 
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value

of mutual fund investments 1,614,739           697,843                 

Total additions 2,690,928           1,748,475              

Deductions
Benefit payments 1,620,243           1,415,823              
Administration expenses 20,981                 20,526                    

Total deductions 1,641,224           1,436,349              

Net increase (decrease) in net position 1,049,704           312,126                 

Net position - beginning of period 26,233,725         25,921,599            

Net position - end of period 27,283,429$       26,233,725$          
                                                     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

Note 1:   Organization  
 
The Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners (Corporation) is a nonprofit auxiliary organization to the California 
Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo (University).  The Corporation is a self-supporting entity which provides 
the University with certain services and facilities that are an integral part of the educational program of the University.  
The University has delegated authority for these activities to the auxiliary in order to mitigate risk to the University or 
because the activities cannot be financially supported by the state government by law or can be more efficiently 
operated through the auxiliary.  Essentially, all revenues, and the realization of certain assets, are dependent upon the 
continuation of the Corporation’s status as an auxiliary organization to the University.  The Corporation was originally 
incorporated as California Polytechnic State University Foundation and legally changed its name to Cal Poly 
Corporation in 2006.  In 2024, the Corporation registered it name doing business as Cal Poly Partners. 
 
In February 2012, the Corporation accepted all of the assets, liabilities and activities of Cal Poly Housing Corporation, a 
nonprofit auxiliary organization to the University organized to develop and maintain affordable housing and related 
facilities for University faculty and staff. 
 

Note 2:   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Financial Reporting Entity  
 
The accompanying financial statements present the accounts of the Corporation, including the endowment and 
campus program accounts held for the benefit of the University and related organizations.  The Corporation is a 
governmental organization under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and 
is also a component unit of the University, a public university under the California State University (CSU) system.  The 
Corporation has chosen to use the reporting model for special purpose governments engaged only in business-type 
activities consistent with guidance of the CSU. 
 
Basis of Presentation  
 
The financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants, gifts, and 
similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.  The Corporation complies with all 
applicable GASB pronouncements. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

Note 2:   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets (Other than Investments) and Liabilities  
 
The Corporation considers assets and liabilities that can reasonably be expected, as part of its normal business 
operations, to be converted to cash or liquidated within 12 months of the dates of the Statement of Net Position to be 
current.  All other assets and liabilities are considered to be noncurrent. 
 
Reclassifications  
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
The Corporation considers all unrestricted highly-liquid investments with an initial original maturity of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.  Cash equivalents held by brokers at year-end 
pending long-term reinvestment are considered investments. 
 
Investments  
 
Investment securities are reported at fair value.  Marketable securities’ fair values are based on quoted market prices 
from independent sources.  Investments in real estate are initially recorded at fair value established by independent 
appraisals.  In subsequent periods, real estate is evaluated for impairment based on market conditions, market quotes 
or updated appraisals.   
 
Investments that are used for current operations are classified as short-term investments.  Investments that are 
restricted from withdrawal or use for other than current operations, designated or restricted for the acquisition or 
construction of noncurrent assets, designated or restricted for the liquidation of the noncurrent portion of long-term 
debt, and restricted as to the liquidity of the investments are classified as other long-term investments.  All 
endowment and split-interest trust investments are classified as noncurrent regardless of maturity due to restrictions 
limiting the Corporation’s ability to use these investments. 
 
Investment income and endowment income consist of realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, 
interest and dividends.  The amounts are presented net of investment management and custodian fees. 
 
Accounts Receivable  
 
The Corporation has accounts receivable from the University, University organizations and students and external 
organizations in conjunction with the services it provides as an auxiliary organization.  Accounts receivable are also  
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recorded from contract and grant sponsors, generally federal, state and local governments, nonprofit organizations 
and corporate sponsors.  The Corporation provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad 
debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
accounts.  Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off 
against the valuation allowance.  The Corporation maintains a minimal allowance for doubtful accounts for these 
receivables based upon management’s estimate of their collectability.  The allowance for doubtful accounts for 
accounts receivable was $10,750 and $9,129 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  
 
Pledges Receivable 
 

Pledges receivable are unconditional promises to make future payments to the Corporation.  Pledges receivable are 
recognized as gift revenue in the period pledged when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.  Pledge 
payments promised to be made in future years are recorded at the present value of future cash flows net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,305,248 and $1,243,460 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  The discount 
on pledges receivable is computed using the five-year Treasury note rate applicable in the year pledged.  In 
subsequent years, this discount is accreted and recorded as additional gift revenue.   
 

Conditional pledges, which depend on the occurrence of a specified future or uncertain event, are recognized as gift 
revenue when the conditions are substantially met. 
 
Note Receivable  
 

The Corporation has a note receivable from the University, which represents a line-of-credit extended from the 
Corporation to the College of Agriculture, Food, & Environmental Sciences for construction of the JUSTIN and J. LOHR 
Center for Wine and Viticulture.  The line-of-credit agreement requires quarterly interest payments, with all 
outstanding principal and interest originally due and payable on the expiration date, June 30, 2024.  On September 11, 
2024, the Corporation executed an amendment to the line-of-credit agreement, extending the due date to June 30, 
2025. 
 
Lease Receivables and Lease Liabilities  
 
The Corporation accounts for leases in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which enhances the relevance 
and consistency of information relating to leasing activities.  It establishes requirements for lease accounting based on 
the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.  A lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources.  See Note 10 for information on the Corporation’s leasing activities and balances.    
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Subscription-Based Assets and Liabilities  
 
The Corporation accounts for Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (“SBITAs”) in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which was implemented by the 
Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2023.  This Statement provides guidance on accounting and financial 
reporting for SBITAs for government end users.  A government is required to recognize a right-to-use subscription 
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability. See Note 11 for information on the 
Corporation’s SBITA activities and balances for the year ended June 30, 2024.  The Corporation has not recorded a 
restatement of beginning net position for the year ended June 30, 2022 for the implementation of this Standard, since 
such restatement would be immaterial in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Inventories  
 
Inventories are valued according to various methods, which approximate the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) 
or market as follows: 
 

 Breeding stock - actual cost less accumulated depreciation 
Other livestock - unit value livestock method 

 Foodstuff - moving average cost 
 Other inventories - moving average cost or first-in, first-out 
 

Endowments  
 
The Corporation holds 10 individual endowments for others. These endowments are managed by the Corporation to 
be invested long-term and the related income either expended for support of University programs, including the 
Alumni Association and Associated Students, Inc., or related external organizations.  Additions to endowments held 
for others (principally the return on investment of fund assets) are recorded as liabilities as opposed to revenues. 
 
Capital Assets  
 
Capital assets, consisting of land, buildings, leasehold improvements, construction-in-progress, equipment and 
intangible assets, with an estimated useful life greater than one year, are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition.  
Capital assets with a unit acquisition cost of less than $5,000 are generally not capitalized.  Capital assets acquired as a 
group with individual unit acquisition costs less than $5,000 may be capitalized if they are considered collectively 
material.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset, or materially extend 
its useful life, are expensed to operations.  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets.   
  



 30 

Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

Note 2:   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Estimated useful lives are generally as follows: 
 

 Buildings       30 years 
 Leasehold improvements     5 - 20 years 
 Equipment       3 - 8 years 
 Intangible assets      3 - 5 years 
 

Capital assets acquired through federal and state grants and contracts where the government retains a reversionary 
interest are not capitalized, or depreciated, until title passes to the Corporation.  
 
Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 
 
The Corporation records all inflows and outflows of resources that are not assets and liabilities and are related to 
future periods as deferred inflows or outflows of resources. 
 
Compensated Absences  
 
The Corporation accrues leave for employees at rates based upon length of service and job classification.  Accrued 
balances are categorized as current and noncurrent based upon the criteria discussed above. 
 
Unearned Revenue  
 
The Corporation sells dining plan contracts to University students on a prepaid basis.  The amount of the dining plan 
contracts that has not been earned is recorded as unearned revenue.  Unearned revenue also includes unearned 
amounts for conference deposits. 
 
Sponsored Programs Receipts Over Expenditures  
 
Sponsored programs receipts over expenditures primarily includes revenue billed or collected in advance of when it is 
earned on grants and contracts and not related to time constraints.   
 
Actuarial Trust Liabilities and Change in Value of Charitable Gift Annuities Held for Others  
 
Actuarial trust liabilities include charitable gift annuities held for others based on the present value of future payments 
calculated using IRS life expectancy tables or California Department of Insurance standard annuity tables and 
discounted at the Treasury note rate in effect for a comparable period of time at the date of the gift.  Change in value 
of charitable gift annuities is recorded for any changes in actuarial assumptions. 
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Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)  
 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Cal Poly Corporation Retiree 
Welfare Benefits Plan (the Benefits Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Benefits Plan’s fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Benefits Plan. For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Pensions   
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Corporation’s California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net Position  
 
The Corporation’s net position is classified into the following categories for accounting and reporting purposes: 
 
Net investment in capital assets: 
This category includes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, less the outstanding principal 
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, including any related 
deferred outflows or inflows of resources.   
 
Restricted – expendable: 
This category relates to contributions restricted by donors to be expended for specific purposes in support of the 
University. 
 
Unrestricted: 
This category includes the portion of net position not subject to donor-imposed restrictions, which Corporation 
management may designate for specific purposes.  The Corporation first expends restricted-expendable assets, when 
available, prior to utilizing unrestricted funds.  A significant portion of unrestricted net position is currently designated 
for capital projects. 
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Classification of Revenues and Expenses  
 
The Corporation considers operating revenues and expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange transactions or from other activities that 
are connected directly to the Corporation’s primary functions.  Exchange transactions include charges for services 
rendered and the acquisition of goods and services.   
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, certain significant revenues relied upon and budgeted for fundamental 
operational support of the core mission of the Corporation are mandated to be recorded as nonoperating revenues. 
Nonoperating revenues and expenses include the Corporation’s net investment income, private gifts for other than 
capital purposes, interest expense on capital related debt and gain or loss on disposal of capital assets.  Capital grants 
and gifts and extraordinary and nonrecurring events are classified as other changes in net position.   
 
Donated Assets 
 
Donated materials, livestock, property and equipment, and other noncash donations of greater than $5,000 and all 
marketable securities are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair values at the date of donation.   
 
Donated Services  
 
The Corporation records the amount of contributed services, specialized skills that would typically be purchased if not 
provided by donation, as revenue in the period received.  For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, grants and 
contracts revenue included $1,116,507 and $874,949, respectively, of assigned time of project directors paid by the 
University. 
 
Donated Collection Items  
 
The Corporation maintains an art collection acquired by donation which has not been recorded in the financial 
statements, as the collection is held for public exhibition or education; the collection is protected, kept 
unencumbered, cared for, and preserved.  The value of the collection was estimated at $1,400,000 at June 30, 2024 
and 2023.  
 
Fair Value Measurements  
 
As defined in GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  The Corporation uses valuation techniques that are appropriate under the circumstances and for  
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which sufficient data are available to measure fair value.  Valuation techniques maximize the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
GASB Statement No. 72 establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  That 
hierarchy has three levels: 
 
Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2 — Observable inputs, other than Level 1 prices, for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
For fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the application of valuation techniques applied to the Corporation’s 
financial statements has been consistent. 
 
Income Tax Status  
 
The Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  However, 
income from certain activities not directly related to the Corporation’s tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as 
unrelated business income.  No liability for income taxes has been recorded since the amount is not expected to be 
significant.  In addition, the Corporation qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 
170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3).   
 
The Corporation follows accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which requires, 
among other things, the recognition and measurement of tax positions based on a "more likely than not" (likelihood 
greater than 50%) approach.  As of June 30, 2024, management has considered its tax positions and believes that the 
Corporation did not maintain any tax positions that did not meet the "more likely than not" threshold.   
 
The Corporation does not expect any material changes through June 30, 2025.  As noted above, the Corporation does 
not currently pay income taxes.  However, the Corporation remains subject to taxes on any net income that is derived 
from a trade or business, regularly carried on, and unrelated to its exempt purpose.  No income taxes have been 
recorded in the accompanying financial statements since management believes the Corporation has no taxable 
unrelated business income. 
 
Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures as of the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Recent Pronouncements 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements.  Statement No. 94 improves financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and 
public-public partnership arrangements, as well as availability payment arrangements.  The provisions of Statement 
No. 94 are generally effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, with earlier application encouraged.   
Implementation of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements. 
 

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  Statement 

No. 96 provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology 
arrangements for government end users.  The provisions of Statement No. 96 are generally effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2022, with earlier application encouraged.   Management began applying the provisions of 
Statement No. 96 for the Corporation’s June 30, 2023 financial statements.  A corresponding subscription-based asset 
and liability have been included on the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2023.  See Note 12 for further details. 
 
In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.  Statement No. 99 enhances comparability in accounting 
and financial reporting to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that 
have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and 
financial reporting for financial guarantees.  Certain statement requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2022.  Requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative 
instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.  
Implementation of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements. 
 
In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections-an amendment of GASB 
Statement No 62.  Statement No. 100 enhances accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting 
changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable 
information for making decisions or assessing accountability.  The requirements of this Statement are effective in fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2023, with earlier application encouraged. Implementation of this Statement did not 
have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements. 
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In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences.  Statement No. 101 updates the recognition 
and measurement guidance for compensated absences.  The Statement aligns the recognition and measurement 
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, with earlier adoption encouraged.  
Management has not yet determined the impact of this Statement on the financial statements. 
 
In December 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures.  Statement No. 102 provides users of 
government financial statements with essential information about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due 
to certain concentrations or constraints.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2024, with earlier adoption encouraged.  Management has not yet determined the impact of this 
Statement on the financial statements. 
 
In April 2024, GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements.  Statement No. 103 improves 
key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential 
for decision making and assessing a government’s accountability.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025, with earlier adoption encouraged.  Management has not yet determined 
the impact of this Statement on the financial statements. 
 

Note 3:   Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
The Corporation maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in California.  Accounts at each 
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per account title.  With a 
portion of their funds, the Corporation also participates in a deposit-placement money market program designed to 
allocate funds amongst member institutions in such a way that no one bank holds more than $250,000 in Corporation 
assets, meaning that all the assets placed with a particular program are fully FDIC insured.  At June 30, 2024, the 
Corporation had uninsured cash deposits totaling $2,262,362 held principally at Wells Fargo Bank. 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, a portion of cash and cash equivalents was restricted according to donor stipulations as 
follows: 
 

2024 2023
Endowments 19,947$                 8,598$                   
Split interest trusts 59,208 52,196

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 79,155$                 60,794$                 
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At June 30, 2024 and 2023, investments were classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 

2024 2023
Short-term investments 71,162,946$         65,567,307$         
Endowment investments 5,560,528             2,408,112              
Other long-term investments 24,393,895           33,911,942           

Total investments 101,117,369$       101,887,361$       
                                                               

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, other long-term investments included $2,291,575 and $2,111,075, respectively, 
representing assets held for charitable gift annuities held for others. 
 

At June 30, 2024, investments comprised the following: 
 

Current Noncurrent Total
Equity securities 769,786$               $                         769,786$                   
Fixed income securities 11,835,319           390,757                 12,226,076                
Real estate 80,000                   80,000                       
Mutual funds: 

Equity funds 41,554,152           14,962,739           56,516,891                
Bond funds 16,661,582           14,268,012           30,929,594                
Exchange traded funds 18,255                   18,255                       

Other investments:   
Cash and interest receivable pending

long-term investment 323,852                 248,692                 572,544                     
Agriculture related retains 4,223                     4,223                          

Total investments 71,162,946$         29,954,423$         101,117,369$           
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At June 30, 2023, investments comprised the following:  

 

Current Noncurrent Total
Equity securities 421,590$                     $                        421,590$            
Fixed income securities 11,837,858                  403,534                12,241,392         
Real estate                                       80,000                  80,000                 
Mutual funds:                                                                 

Equity funds 38,111,192                  11,398,507          49,509,699         
Bond funds 14,821,391                  24,383,131          39,204,522         
Exchange traded funds 39,351                                                    39,351                 

Other investments:   
Cash and interest receivable pending

long-term investment 335,925                       50,659                  386,584               
Agriculture related retains                                  4,223                    4,223                   

Total investments 65,567,307$                36,320,054$        101,887,361$    

 
Investment Policies 
 
The Corporation’s Board of Directors (Board) oversees the management of its investments and establishes investment 
policy.  The Board has delegated the implementation of the investment policy to staff with the concurrence of its 
Investment Advisory Committee.  The Investment Advisory Committee advises on investment guidelines and selection 
of investment managers.  The Corporation prohibits investments that jeopardize the safety of principal concept or 
non-profit status of the Corporation.  The Board of Trustees of the CSU adopted a resolution urging auxiliary boards 
that make corporate investments to issue statements of social responsibility and to follow those precepts in examining 
past and considering future investments.  The Corporation’s Board recognizes and accepts its social responsibility with 
respect to the investment of funds.  
 
The Corporation manages investments consistent with the designation and use of the assets.  Investments 
recommended by the Investment Advisory Committee include high quality, readily marketable securities. 
 
The goal of the fixed income securities is to limit risk while outperforming what would otherwise be available in cash 
or money market products.  The fixed income portion of the investments may include both domestic and international 
securities, along with common bond substitutes. Investment guidelines establish set ranges for the percentage of the 
total bond portfolio that can be invested in U.S. government, investment grade, non-investment grade and foreign 
bonds.  The fixed income portfolio is measured against the Barclays Capital Intermediate U.S. Government/Credit, 
Merrill Lynch 1 – 3 Year U.S. Treasuries, Citi 3-Month Treasury Bill and Citi 1-Month CD. 
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The equity portion of the investments may include both domestic and international equities, including foreign 
currency denominated, common and preferred stocks and actively managed and passive (index) strategies.  The equity 
portion is measured against the Standard & Poor’s 500 (S&P 500), S&P 500 Developed--Excluding U.S. BMI Property, 
Russell 2000, MSCI Europe, Australasia, and Far East (EAFE), MSCI EAFE Small Cap, MSCI EAFE Emerging Markets, FTSE 
NAREIT Equity and Dow Jones UBS Commodity Index.  
 
Investment Risk Factors 
 
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments.  Some, such as custodial credit risk, concentration of 
credit risk, and foreign currency risk may affect both the equity and fixed income securities.  Equity securities respond 
to such investment behavioral factors as economic conditions, individual company earnings, performance and market 
liquidity, while fixed income securities are sensitive to credit risks and changes in interest rates.  
 
Equity Securities Risk: 
Equity securities held by the Corporation through mutual funds, or the Student Investment Management Portfolio 
comprised $57,304,932, or 57%, of the total investments of the Corporation at June 30, 2024.  Equities are subject to 
both unsystematic and systematic risk.  Unsystematic risk is the risk of a price change due to the unique circumstances 
of a specific security or group of related securities.  The Corporation addresses unsystematic risk by investing in widely 
diversified equity mutual funds.  Equity securities are also subject to systematic risk or market risk.  Systematic risk 
recognizes that equity securities, as an asset class, can change in value as a result of such factors as inflation, exchange 
rates, political instability, war, economic conditions and interest rates.  This type of risk is not specific to a particular 
company or industry and cannot be substantially mitigated by diversification. 
 
Credit Risk: 
Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the chance that a bond issue will fail to pay interest or 
principal in a timely manner, or that negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause 
security prices to decline.  The following schedule of credit risk summarizes the fair value of the fixed income 
securities subject to credit risk.  The Corporation maintains policies to manage credit risk which include requiring 
minimum credit ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, including Standard and Poor’s 
or Moody’s Investor Services, for certain investments.  For investments in securities rated below investment grade, 
the Corporation and its investment advisor monitor the investments and fund managers to determine if the portfolio 
is managed according to the stated guidelines.  
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The credit ratings of the Corporation’s fixed income securities held in investments and money market funds at 
June 30, 2024 were as follows: 

Fair Value Rating
Bond mutual funds:

DFA Intermediate Government Bond 7,880,846$           AA
Loomis Sayles Bond Fund - Institutional 3,964,243              BBB
PIMCO Total Return Fund - Institutional 6,934,630              AA
PIMCO Foreign Bond Fund - Institutional 4,824,643              AA
PIMCO High Yield Fund - Institutional 1,731,012              BB
PIMCO Short Term - Institutional 5,594,220              AA
PIMCO Low Duration Fund -                          

U.S. government:
U.S. Treasury bills 12,226,076           AA

Money market funds:
Wells Fargo Cash Investment Money Market - Institutional 16,742,628           Unrated
Schwab One Fund 561,058                 Unrated
Schwab Government Money Fund 5,007                     Unrated

Total fixed income and debt securities subject to credit risk 60,464,363$         

 
Custodial Risk: 
Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments may not be returned. 
Substantially all of the Corporation’s investments are issued, registered or held in the name of the Corporation by 
custodian banks and brokers, as its agent.  Other types of investments represent ownership interest that do not exist 
in physical or book entry form.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk: 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification, such as having substantial investments 
in a few individual issuers; thereby exposing the organization to greater risks resulting from adverse conditions or 
developments.  GASB requires disclosure of investments in any one individual issuer that represent 5% or more of 
total investments.  At June 30, 2024, the Corporation had no investments that exceeded this threshold. 
 
Interest Rate Risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline because of rising interest rates.  The Corporation 
measures interest rate risk using the weighted average duration method.  The weighted average duration of the 
Corporation’s fixed income securities and money market funds at June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
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Weighted
Average
Duration

Fair Value (in years)
Bond mutual funds:

DFA Intermediate Government Bond 7,880,846$           5.8
Loomis Sayles Bond Fund - Institutional 3,964,243              6.1
PIMCO Total Return Fund - Institutional 6,934,630              5.9
PIMCO Foreign Bond Fund - Institutional 4,824,643              5.7
PIMCO High Yield Fund - Institutional 1,731,012              3.2
PIMCO Short Term - Institutional 5,594,220              0.0
PIMCO Low Duration Fund -                          

U.S. government:
U.S. Treasury bills 12,226,076           0.5

Money market funds 17,308,693           0.0
Total fixed income and debt securities

subject to interest rate risk 60,464,363$         2.5
                                

Foreign Currency Risk: 
Exposure to foreign currency risk results from investments in foreign currency denominated equity or fixed income 
investments.  The Corporation maintains international equity investments by investing in international mutual funds 
that are broadly diversified over many developed and emerging markets.  Exposure to foreign currency risk from these 
investments is permitted and may be fully or partially hedged by the individual mutual fund managers, but hedging is 
not permitted for speculation or to create leverage.   
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The Corporation’s exposure to foreign currency risk at June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
 

Fair Value
Euro 4,692,697$           
Japanese Yen 3,521,006              
British Pounds 3,351,482              
Australian Dollar 1,129,780              
Indian Rupee 1,035,216              
New Taiwan Dollar 955,165                 
Chinese Yen 860,133                 
Canadian Dollar 733,324                 
Swedish Krona 588,475                 
South Korean Won 581,530                 
Swiss Francs 556,229                 
Hong Kong Dollars 532,363                 
Danish Krone 513,143                 
Singapore Dollar 476,930                 
Brazilian Reals 237,764                 
South African Rand 195,506                 
Norwegian Krona 182,443                 
Mexican Peso 160,303                 
Saudi Riyal 157,021                 
Indonesian Rupiah 119,180                 
Turkish Lira 104,587                 
Polish Zloty 75,240                   
Malaysian Ringgit 70,067                   
Thai Baht 69,407                   
New Zealand Dollar 68,561                   
UAE Dirham 64,578                   
Other 145,166                 

Total investments subject to foreign currency risk 21,177,296$         
                                

 
Other currencies are individually less than 1% of the Corporation’s investments.  The foreign currency risk by 
investment type at June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
 

Equity mutual funds 21,249,018$         
Bond mutual funds (71,722)                  

Total investments subject to foreign currency risk 21,177,296$         
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Note 4:   Investments (Continued) 
 

Investment Fair Values: 
The Corporation categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  With the exception of the following, all of the Corporation investments are classified 
in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy: 
 

Level 2 – Preferred stock equity positions in privately-held companies 
Level 3 – Agriculture related retains and real estate 

 
Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued at their historical cost and are consistent with stock 
certificates provided by the underlying companies and were valued at $49,997 at June 30, 2024 and 2023.  Agriculture 
related retains classified in Level 3 are partnership interests based on values provided by the partnership and were 
valued at $4,223 at June 30, 2024 and 2023.  Real estate classified in Level 3 consists of gifted assets based on fair 
values at the time of donation and were valued at $80,000 at June 30, 2024 and 2023.   
 

Note 5:   Pledges Receivable  
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, pledges receivable comprised the following: 
 

 

2024 2023
Athletic programs 5,570,704$           7,538,975$           
College-specific facilities 5,514,009             5,702,973              
Stadium suites 2,720                     2,720                     
     Subtotal 11,087,433           13,244,668           
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (1,305,248)            (1,243,460)            
Less unamortized discount (1,069,408)            (1,016,196)            

Pledges receivable, net 8,712,777$           10,985,012$         
                           

Amounts due in:
One year or less 3,040,472$           2,882,830$           
One to five years 7,689,461             4,396,838              
More than five years 357,500                 5,965,000              

Total amounts due 11,087,433$         13,244,668$         
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Note 6:   Capital Assets  
 
At June 30, 2024, capital assets comprised the following: 
 

Transfers of
Balance Completed Balance

June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions CIP June 30, 2024
Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land and improvements 19,864,793$           $                         $                       $                         19,864,793$           
Works of art and historical treasures 198,000                   198,000                   
Construction in progress 43,006,022              49,443,722           (172,749)              (68,933,952)          23,343,043              
    Total nondepreciable capital assets 63,068,815              49,443,722           (172,749)              (68,933,952)          43,405,836              

Depreciable and amortizable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvements 55,292,681              14,840                   -                        66,117,691            121,425,212           
Leasehold improvements 11,936,506              64,448                   (6,830,979)          494,425                 5,664,400                
Equipment 13,262,863              471,914                 (1,569,468)          2,321,836              14,487,145              
Leased buildings 3,531,930                230,138                 (681,473)              -                          3,080,595                
Leased equipment 86,400                                                                                 -                          86,400                     
Intangible assets:
     Software and websites 789,763                                                  (70,724)                                           719,039                   
     Licenses and permits 442,493                   25,000                   (90,000)                -                          377,493                   

SBITA S/W 699,592                                              699,592                   
Total depreciable and amortizable 
    capital assets 86,042,228              806,340                 (9,242,644)          68,933,952            146,539,876           

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization:
Buildings and building improvements (10,362,864)            (2,879,530)            -                        (13,242,394)            
Leasehold improvements (8,814,543)               (427,527)               5,549,692            (3,692,378)               
Equipment (8,505,096)               (1,276,809)            1,379,069            (8,402,836)               
Leased assets (973,147)                  (493,206)               681,476               (784,877)                  
Intangible assets:
     Software and websites (689,596)                  (45,039)                  70,724                 (663,911)                  
     Licenses and permits (416,743)                  (5,917)                    69,750                 (352,910)                  

SBITA S/W Amort (174,898)                  (174,923)               (349,821)                  
Total accumulated depreciation
    and amortization (29,936,887)            (5,302,951)            7,750,711                                            (27,489,127)            

Total capital assets, net 119,174,156$         44,947,111$         (1,664,682)$        -$                        162,456,585$         
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Note 6:   Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
At June 30, 2023, capital assets comprised the following: 
 

Transfers of
Balance Completed Balance

June 30, 2022 Additions Reductions CIP June 30, 2023
Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land and improvements 19,864,793$        $                         $                       $                         19,864,793$           
Works of art and historical treasures 198,000               198,000                   
Construction in progress 16,415,412          28,811,860           (493,169)              (1,728,081)             43,006,022              
    Total nondepreciable capital assets 36,478,205          28,811,860           (493,169)              (1,728,081)             63,068,815              

Depreciable and amortizable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvements 54,330,514          301,256                 (26,389)                687,300                 55,292,681              
Leasehold improvements 11,915,539          8,720                     (350,314)              362,561                 11,936,506              
Equipment 12,467,556          714,951                 (597,864)              678,220                 13,262,863              
Leased buildings 3,681,530                                           (149,600)              3,531,930                
Leased equipment 88,110                                                 (1,710)                  86,400                     
Intangible assets:                                
     Software and websites 798,537                                              (8,774)                                             789,763                   
     Licenses and permits 492,005                                          (49,512)                442,493                   

SBITA S/W                               699,592                 699,592                   
Total depreciable and amortizable 
    capital assets 83,773,791          1,724,519             (1,184,163)          1,728,081              86,042,228              

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization:
Buildings and building improvements (8,565,834)           (1,823,419)            26,389                 (10,362,864)            
Leasehold improvements (8,652,671)           (495,994)               334,122               (8,814,543)               
Equipment (7,910,066)           (1,171,657)            576,627               (8,505,096)               
Leased assets (566,997)              (530,431)               124,281               (973,147)                  
Intangible assets:
     Software and websites (653,331)              (45,039)                  8,774                   (689,596)                  
     Licenses and permits (460,255)              (6,000)                    49,512                 (416,743)                  

SBITA S/W Amort                               (174,898)               (174,898)                  
Total accumulated depreciation
    and amortization (26,809,154)         (4,247,438)            1,119,705                                            (29,936,887)            

Total capital assets, net 93,442,842$        26,288,941$         (557,627)$           -$                        119,174,156$         
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Note 7:   Short-Term Debt 
 
Effective July 1, 2023, the Corporation entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party to provide certain 
services for the Corporation’s campus dining service program.  The agreement carries an initial term of nine years and 
includes an ability to extend for an additional five years.  As part of the agreement, the unrelated third party will 
provide capital to the Corporation’s campus dining service program to fund capital improvements in a total sum not to 
exceed $19,180,848.  Capital provided to the Corporation comes at no interest cost and must be repaid, on a straight-
line basis, over the remaining term of the agreement.  During fiscal year 2023-24, $6,950,000 in capital was provided 
to the Corporation and repayments of $253,268 were made.  The outstanding balance owed at June 30, 2024 was 
$6,696,732. 
 
Effective March 14, 2024, the Corporation entered into a revolving credit agreement with an unrelated third-party 
bank. The agreement carries an initial term of three years and allows the Corporation to borrow up to $20,000,000.  
Interest is payable monthly on any amounts borrowed at an annual interest rate of SOFR plus a margin of 1.55%.  
Interest is payable quarterly on any amounts not borrowed at an annual interest rate of .40%.  The Corporation will 
use amounts borrowed to finance the construction of the Vista Meadows, an on-campus 33 single family unit 
workforce housing project.  During fiscal year 2023-24, no borrowings or repayments occurred.  The outstanding 
balance owed at June 30, 2024 was $0. 
 

Note 8:   Long-Term Debt Obligation  

 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the long-term debt obligation activity was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 One Year

          Note payable, State-Wide: 
               Revenue Bond Series 2016A 1,755,000$        $                     (100,000)$            1,655,000$            105,000$            
               Revenue Bond Series 2018A 21,915,000        (420,000)              21,495,000            440,000              
               Revenue Bond Series 2021A 13,420,000        (230,000)              13,190,000            240,000              
               Commercial Notes Payable -                      23,210,000       23,210,000            23,210,000         

37,090,000        23,210,000       (750,000)              59,550,000            23,995,000         

          Unamortized bond premium
               Revenue Bond Series 2016A 275,715             (22,662)                253,053                  
               Revenue Bond Series 2018A 3,605,330          (142,316)              3,463,014              
               Revenue Bond Series 2021A 2,085,809          (73,617)                2,012,192              

         Total 43,056,854$      23,210,000$     (988,595)$            65,278,259$          23,995,000$      
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Note 8:   Long-Term Debt Obligation (Continued)   
 
At June 30, 2024, future maturities of the long-term debt obligation balance were as follows:  

 

For the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 23,995,000$         1,641,650$           27,239,925$             
2026 825,000                 1,603,275              3,991,300                  
2027 870,000                 1,563,025              3,953,675                  
2028 920,000                 1,520,650              3,916,550                  
2029 960,000                 1,475,900              3,864,800                  

2030-2034 5,595,000             6,031,800              18,118,800                
2035-2039 6,500,000             5,329,800              16,864,850                
2040-2044 7,680,000             3,850,150              15,061,100                
2045-2049 9,565,000             2,097,100              13,357,650                
2050-2053 2,640,000             372,150                 3,213,150                  

Total future maturities 59,550,000$         25,485,500$         109,581,800$           
                               

 

 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the long-term debt obligation represents a note payable originally related to the CSU 
System-Wide Revenue Bonds (SRB) Series 2009A bond issuance to partially fund the construction of the Technology 
Park (Tech Park).   
 
On March 1, 2016, the note payable was amended in connection with a partial defeasance with proceeds from the 
issuance of the SRB Series 2016A.  The SRB Series 2016A refunding resulted in a loss of $293,195, which is included in 
deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position.  The loss on debt refunding is being amortized over 
the life of the refunding debt.  The unamortized loss on debt refunding, included in deferred outflows of resources in 
the Statement of Net Position, was $166,959 and $182,032 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  The SRB Series 
2016A refunding also resulted in a bond premium of $442,847 that is being amortized over the life of the latest 
refunding debt.  Amortization of the bond premium for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $22,662, 
respectively. 
 
 

On July 1, 2017, the Corporation entered into a second amendment to the note payable to partially fund the 
construction of the Vista Grande Replacement Building Project.  The amendment increased the Corporation net 
borrowings by $26,581,000 through the issuance of California State University Institute Commercial Paper Notes. 
 
On August 1, 2018, the Corporation entered into a third amendment to the note payable, which replaced the 
commercial paper notes with proceeds from the issuance of the SRB Series 2018A.  The note payable related to the 
SRB Series 2018A is for $23,400,000 with a premium of $4,305,049 that will be amortized over the life of the loan, 
which are included in long-term debt obligation on the Statement of Net Position.  Amortization of the bond premium 
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $142,316, respectively. 
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Note 8:   Long-Term Debt Obligation (Continued) 
 
On July 1, 2021, the Corporation entered into a fourth amendment to the note payable related to proceeds borrowed 
from the issuance of CSU System-Wide Revenue Bonds to partially fund the renovation of its central dining facility.  
The amendment increases the Corporation’s principal borrowings by $13,420,000 through the issuance of SRB Series 
2021A.  Bonds proceeds borrowed were issued at a premium of $2,226,908 that will be amortized over the life of the 
loan and is included in long-term debt obligation on the Statement of Net Position.  Amortization of the bond for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $73,617, respectively. 
 
On September 1, 2023, the Corporation entered into a fifth amendment to the note payable related to proceeds 
borrowed from the issuance of CSU Institute Commercial Paper Notes to fund the purchase of a commercial property 
located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California.  The amendment increases the Corporation’s principal borrowings by 
$22,310,000.  It is anticipated that the commercial paper notes will be replaced with proceeds from the issuance of 
the CSU SRBs during fiscal year 2024-25.   
 
Principal payments on the note payable began in 2012 and continue until the final payment in November 2052.  The 
note is secured by pledged revenues, including indirect cost recovery payments.  The Corporation cannot incur, 
assume, guarantee, or obligate itself for any debt senior to this unless it meets certain income tests and notifies the 
Board of Trustees of the CSU of such issuance.   
 
The all-in true interest rate is 5.28% for the SRB Series 2009A, 2.78% for the SRB Series 2016A, 3.63% for the SRB 
Series 2018A, and 2.23% for the SRB Series 2021A.  The interest rate for the commercial paper notes has ranged from 
3.75% to 4.25%.  Payments on the note are made each May and November.   
 

Note 9:   Other Postemployment Benefit Plan 
 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 
 

Plan Description and Benefits Provided 
The Corporation sponsors a defined benefit postretirement plan, the Cal Poly Corporation Retiree Welfare Benefits 
Plan (the Benefit Plan) that covers both salaried and non-salaried employees.  The Benefit Plan is a single employer 
defined OPEB plan administered through the Cal Poly Corporation Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association 
(VEBA) Trust.  The Cal Poly Corporation VEBA Trust (Trust) is administered by the Cal Poly Corporation Benefits 
Committee (Trust Administrator).  Members of the Cal Poly Corporation Benefits Committee are approved by the 
Corporation Executive Director and the Chair of the Corporation’s Board of Directors.  The Trust is intended to hold 
assets sufficient to cover, at a minimum, the calculated future healthcare benefits associated with current retirees and 
active, vested employees.  The Corporation holds assets to cover future healthcare benefits associated with active, 
non-vested employees in its board designated OPEB investment pool.  
  



 48 

Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

Note 9:   Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)  
 
The Benefit Plan provides an extension of medical benefits provided while under employment to the plan participants.  
For employees hired prior to December 1, 2011, vesting occurs after five years credited service with CalPERS and 
attainment of age fifty.  Employees hired as of December 1, 2011 and thereafter are subject to an alternative vesting 
schedule based on years of service and age.  Under this revised schedule, an employee is eligible for 50% of the 
benefits after ten years credited service with CalPERS (five of which must be with the Corporation) and attainment of 
age fifty, and is eligible for 100% after twenty years of service and attainment of age fifty.   
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
At June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 142                         
Active employees 210                         

Total 352                         

 
Contributions 
Contributions to the Trust are intended to maintain Trust assets sufficient to cover, at a minimum, the calculated 
future healthcare benefits associated with current retirees and active, vested employees.  Annual contribution rates 
are based on the results of the actuarial report.  Employees are not required to contribute to the Trust.  Medical 
premium payments for retirees are contributory, with retiree contributions adjusted annually for the difference 
between the total medical premium cost and the Corporation contribution rate.  Retirees pay their portion of medical 
premiums directly to CalPERS and are therefore not recorded in the accompanying financial statements.   
 
 

Net OPEB Liability 
 

The Corporation’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate 
the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022.   

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation 2.26 percent
Salary increases 2.80 percent
Investment rate of return 6.50 percent
Healthcare cost trend rates (pre-65) 7.60 percent for 2023, decreasing 0.20 percent per year 

to an ultimate rate of 4.80 percent for 2037 and later years
Healthcare cost trend rates (post-65) 6.20 percent for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of

4.80 percent for 2030 and later years
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Note 9:   Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  
Mortality rates used in the valuation are those used in the most recent CalPERS valuations (CalPERS 2021 Mortality 
pre-retirement and post-retirement with Scale MP-2021). 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on Trust investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for hypothetical investment portfolio allocation of 50% equity, and 50% fixed income.  These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  As of June 30, 2024, the best 
estimates of long-term expected rates of return for each major investment class in the Trust’s portfolio are as follows:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic Large Cap 9.8%
Domestic Small Cap 10.8%
Intl Large Cap 9.8%
Intl Small Cap 10.8%
Emerging Markets 11.3%
Domestic REITs 9.8%
Intl REITs 9.8%
Domestic Fixed Income - High Quality 1.8%
Domestic Fixed Income - Investment Grade 2.4%
Intl Fixed Income 1.0%
High Yield Bonds 4.8%
Cash 0.0%

 
 
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.5 percent.  This single discount rate was based on the 
long-term expected real rate of return of assets.  
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Note 9:   Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 

The changes in the Net OPEB Liability for the Benefit Plan are as follows: 
 

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2023 27,035,208$         25,921,600$         1,113,608$                
Changes in the year:

Service cost 939,038                 939,038                     
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,773,035             1,773,035                  

 Differences between actual and 
      expected experience 83,795                   83,795                       
Changes in assumptions -                              
Changes in benefit terms
Contribution - employer 335,744                 (335,744)                    
Net investment income 1,412,731              (1,412,731)                

 Benefit payments (1,415,823)            (1,415,823)            
 Administrative expense (20,526)                  20,526                       
     Net changes 1,380,045             312,126                 1,067,919                  

Balance at June 30, 2024 28,415,253$         26,233,726$         2,181,527$                
                                    

Increase (Decrease)

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Benefit Plan, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current 
discount rate: 

Current
Discount Rate - Discount Rate Discount Rate +

1% (5.5%) (6.5%) 1% (7.5%)

Net OPEB liability 6,492,919$           2,181,527$           (1,290,722)$              
                                

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Benefit Plan, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than 
the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Current
Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability (485,256)$             2,181,527$           5,233,470$                
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Note 9:   Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 
 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position 
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Trust financial 
statements.  Copies of the Trust annual financial report may be obtained from the Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly 
Partners Business Office at One Grand Avenue, San Luis Obispo, CA 93407. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Corporation recognized an OPEB expense of $401,374.  At June 30, 2024, the 
Corporation reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date 311,587$               $                              
Differences between expected and actual experiences
  in the measurement of the total OPEB liability 85,475                    (1,770,719)                 
Changes in assumptions (5,280,963)                 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on plan investments 2,095,883              

     Total 2,492,945$            (7,051,682)$               
                                                                     

Deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025.  All other amounts reported as deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

For the Year Ending June 30,
720,002$               
959,354                 

99,255                    
1,203,406              

970,055                 
Thereafter 918,252                 

Total 4,870,324$            

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

 
Payable to the OPEB Plan 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation reported a payable of $0 and $0, respectively, for the outstanding amount 
of contributions to the OPEB plan required for the year then ended.  
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Note 10:   Transactions with Related Parties  
 
As discussed in Note 1, the Corporation is an auxiliary organization of the University.  Services are provided by the 
Corporation to the University with billings rendered for services provided.  The University also bills the Corporation for 
services it provides.  The following were transactions with the University as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 
and 2023: 

2024 2023
Accounts receivable 2,647,926$           1,371,074$                
Accounts payable 1,382,956              1,154,973                  
Reimbursements to University for salaries and benefits of

University personnel 4,329,278              4,672,661                  
Reimbursements to University for other than salaries of

University personnel 27,317,950           9,884,690                  
Payments received from University for services, space and programs 15,631,723           8,207,929                  
Cash gifts to the University 5,765,806              4,962,316                  
Noncash gifts to the University 926,948                 443,722                     
Notes receivable 640,785                 2,563,307                  

 
 
The Corporation provides information technology and other services to the Cal Poly Foundation (Foundation) under a 
Business Support Services Agreement, effective July 1, 2015.  The following were transactions with the Foundation as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

2024 2023
Current accounts receivable 688,551$               64,127$                     
Deposit with Corporation 323,000                 323,000                     
Accounts payable 825                         3,530                          
Payments from Foundation under BSSA/ASA 10,000                   10,000                       
Cash contributions to Foundation 1,132,955              187,771                     
Cash contributions from Foundation 2,288,150              2,761,395                  

 
 

Note 11:   Leases  
 
Under GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. 
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Note 11:   Leases (Continued) 
 
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, lease activity was as follows: 
 

2024 2023
Lease receivable 28,988,125$         2,539,934$           
Deferred inflows 28,464,033 2,435,274
Related income 419,433                 44,153                   
Net book value for the right to use leased assets 2,382,118             2,645,183              
Lease liability 2,500,575             2,731,611              
Related expenses 32,030                   35,013                   

 
The Corporation’s right to use leased buildings and equipment is included in capital assets on the Statement of Net 
Position.  See Note 6.  
 
Lessor 
The Corporation is allowed the use of campus land at nominal amounts based on ground leases with the University.  
Subsequently, the Corporation subleases a portion of this campus land to an unrelated research organization.  This 
sublease had an initial term ending March 30, 2023 and is anticipated to be renewed for one-year terms automatically 
through March 30, 2026.  The total rental income received from this lease for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
were $10,250 and $10,250, respectively. 
 
The Corporation leases office space to various tenants in the Tech Park with original lease terms of one to ten years.  
The leases require tenants to pay their pro-rata share of common area maintenance (CAM) expenses.  Rental income 
and CAM charges for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $359,605 and $362,774, respectively.  These 
amounts include rental payments collected under short-term leases of twelve months or less, which were $86,204 and 
$73,380, respectively.    During fiscal year 2023-24, the Corporation entered into a ten-year lease agreement with one 
tenant.  As a result, deferred inflows and lease receivable increased in fiscal year 2023-24 by $496,731 and $500,395, 
respectively. 
 
The Corporation also leases residential space located adjacent to campus to an unrelated educational organization.  
The lease expires in 2025.  Rental income for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $37,529 and $36,614, 
respectively. 
 
During fiscal year 2021-22, land was gifted to the Corporation located in Mount Vernon, Washington.  An existing 
lease was assigned to the Corporation as lessor.  The lease is with an unrelated third party for commercial use with an 
initial term through 2032.  Rental income for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $133,705 and $128,412. 
 
During fiscal year 2022-23, the Corporation assumed a lease unrelated third party for property management services 
at the Bartleson Ranch, located in Arroyo Grande, California.  The initial term of the lease expired on May 31, 2024,  
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but the lessee exercised the first of its two 5-year options during fiscal year 2023-24.  Rental income for the years 
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $17,500 and $35,000.  Annual rental income is $17,500. 
 
On September 19, 2023, the Corporation executed the purchase of a 48,000 square feet commercial property located 
in the city of San Luis Obispo.  In connection with the acquisition of the building, the Corporation entered into a long-
term lease with the University for use of the entire building, effective October 1, 2023.  Quarterly rental payments for 
the lease began on October 1, 2023 at a quarterly base amount of $244,750.  The lease term is 32 years, with one 
option to extend under the same terms.  In addition to base rent, the University submits additional rent payments 
quarterly to reimburse the Corporation for operating expenses.  Rental income and reimbursements for the year 
ended June 30, 2024 were $734,250 and $333,236, respectively.  As a result, deferred inflows and lease receivable 
increased in fiscal year 2023-24 by $25,880,133 and $26,241,961, respectively. 
 
Lessee 
In exchange for services provided to the University, the Corporation has entered into certain long-term operating 
lease agreements with the University which allow the Corporation the use of campus land and facilities at nominal 
amounts through June 30, 2029.  In addition, the Corporation has operating lease agreements with the University and 
its auxiliaries for certain facilities.  Rental payments are due through July 31, 2029 and are subject to annual rent 
adjustments of up to 4%.  The total rent expense paid on these leases for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
were $332,296 and $322,648, respectively.  
 
The Corporation also has a lease with an unrelated third party for Cal Poly Downtown.  Monthly rental payments for 
the existing lease began November 1, 2016 at a monthly base amount of $13,650 and are subject to biennial rent 
adjustments based on CPI indices for a term of 10 years.  On May 6, 2020, the lease agreement was amended to 
reduce monthly rental payments through October 31, 2021 and remove biennial rent adjustments through 
November 1, 2022.  The total rent expense paid on the lease for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were 
$171,987 and $171,987. 
 
In conjunction with the Bella Montaña development, the Corporation holds a ground lease with the University which 
expires April 2104.  The lease requires the homes to be sold under a University faculty and staff housing eligibility 
priority system which requires the homeowner to reside there as principal place of residence and restricts resale to 
eligible buyers.  Each home is subject to a ground sublease.  Under the ground lease agreement, the Corporation is to 
pay the University annually all ground rents received under the subleases less costs of administration, operating 
expenses and reserves.  Total ground rents received for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $52,577 and 
$50,938, respectively.  Administrative costs and operating expenses exceeded ground rents received; therefore, no 
amounts were paid to the University. 
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In April 2024, the Corporation entered into a lease for its Center for Innovation and Entrepreneurship (CIE) with an 
unrelated third party for commercial space in the city of San Luis Obispo, CA.  Monthly rental payments for the lease 
will not begin until October 1, 2025.  The original lease term is 34 years, with three options each to extend for an 
additional five years. 
 
At June 30, 2024, future maturities of the lease liability balance were as follows:  
 

For the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 244,651                 49,449                   294,100                     
2026 255,822                 44,739                   300,561                     
2027 251,062                 39,918                   290,980                     
2028 255,343                 35,084                   290,427                     
2029 264,368                 30,102                   294,470                     

2030-2034 819,329                 92,408                   911,737                     
2035-2037 410,000                 11,132                   421,132                     

Total future maturities 2,500,575$           302,832$               2,803,407$                
                               

 

 

Note 12:     Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
 
Change in Accounting Principle  
The Corporation implemented GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, for 
the year ended June 30, 2023.  This Statement provides guidance on accounting and financial reporting for 
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (“SBITAs”) for government end users.  A SBITA is defined as 
a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (a SBITA vendor’s) information technology (IT) 
software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets, as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction.  Due to the implementation of this Statement, the Corporation recognized and 
recorded $524,694 as a right-to-use subscription asset, along with $392,456 as a related subscription liability, and 
$132,238 of related expenses as of June 30, 2023.  The Corporation recognized $147,994 of related expenses as of 
June 30, 2024.  The subscription liability is measured at the present value of the subscription payments expected to be 
made during the subscription term.  Future payments are discounted using an incremental borrowing rate of 3.66%, as 
provided by the CSU Chancellor’s Office.  The Corporation’s right-to-use SBITAs is included in capital assets on the 
Statement of Net Position. See Note 6. 
 
SBITAs 
As of June 26, 2019, the Corporation entered into a subscription-based information technology arrangement with an 
unrelated thirty-party software vendor for its campus dining cloud-based point-of-sale system. The system went live   
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Note 12:     Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (Continued) 
 
prior to the implementation of GASB 96. The contract, also known as a Software as a Service (“SaaS”) agreement, 
automatically renews on an annual basis. It is anticipated to be renewed through June 30, 2026, with an annual 
increase of 5%. 

 
The Corporation paid vendor fees during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amount of $0and $165,899, 
respectively. The capitalizable portions of the fees were $0 and $151,575, respectively. 
 
The initial right-of-use subscription asset and subscription liability recognized for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, 
were $585,917 each.  For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the principal decreased by $0 and $277,141, 
respectively.  As a result, the subscription liability balance was $308,776as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.  As of June 30, 
2024 and 2023, the net SBITA right-to-use intangible asset was reported in the amounts of $292,959 and $439,438, 
respectively. 
 
As of May 4, 2011, the Corporation entered into a subscription-based information technology arrangement with an 
unrelated thirty-party software vendor for its campus dining meal plan portal and credit card processing system. The 
system was implemented at the time of the original agreement. The contract, also known as a Software as a Service 
(“SaaS”) agreement, automatically renews on an annual basis. It is anticipated to be renewed through April 30, 2026. 
 
The Corporation paid subscription renewal fees during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amounts of 
$32,170 and $29,995, respectively. The capitalization portion of each fee was $29,995. 
 
The initial right-of-use subscription asset and subscription liability recognized for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, 
were $113,675 each.  For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the principal decreased by $29,995 each year, 
resulting in a subscription liability balance in the amounts of $56,751 and $83,680 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively.  As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the net SBITA right-to-use intangible asset was reported in the amounts of 
$56,813 and $85,256, respectively. 
 
At June 30, 2024, future maturities of the subscription liability balance were as follows:  
 
For the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 337,133                 19,127                   356,260                     
2026 28,394                   1,601                     29,995                       

Total future maturities 365,527$               20,728$                 386,255$                   
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As of June 22, 2023, the Corporation entered into a subscription-based information technology arrangement with an 
unrelated thirty-party software vendor for its sponsored programs grants management software.  During fiscal year 
2023-24, the Corporation paid vendor fees in the amount of $175,020 as part of the implementation process.  A right-
to-use subscription asset will be recognized when the software is place in service, which is expected to occur in Fall 
2024.   
 
As of January 31, 2024, the Corporation entered into a subscription-based information technology arrangement with 
an unrelated thirty-party software vendor for a new enterprise resource planning system.  During fiscal year 2023-24, 
the Corporation paid vendor fees in the amount of $583,666 as part of the implementation process.  A right-to-use 
subscription asset will be recognized when the software is place in service, which is expected to occur in Spring 2025. 
 

Note 13:   Defined Benefit Pension Plan  
 

General Information about the Pension Plan 
 

Plan Description and Benefits Provided  
Substantially all full-time employees of the Corporation participate in CalPERS (the Plan), an agent multiple-employer 
contributory public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California. 
 
Employees hired for the first time by the Corporation on or after January 1, 2013 (Tier 3) who are eligible for 
retirement at the age of 62 are entitled to a monthly benefit of 2% of final compensation for each year of service 
credit.  Employees hired for the first time on or after May 14, 2005 but before January 1, 2013 (Tier 2) may become 
eligible for the 2% benefit at age 60.  Employees hired for the first time prior to May 14, 2005 (Tier 1) may become 
eligible for the 2% benefit at age 55.  Retirement compensation is reduced if the plan is coordinated with social 
security.  Retirement may begin at age 50 (Tiers 1 and 2) or 52 (Tier 3) with a reduced benefit rate.  The Plan also 
provides death and disability benefits.  Retirement benefits fully vest after five years of credited service.  Upon 
separation from the Corporation, members’ accumulated contributions are refundable with interest credited through 
the date of separation.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan 
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.   
 
Employees Covered  
 

At June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Plan: 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 409                         
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 819                         
Active employees 245                         

Total 1,473                     
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Net Pension Liability 
 
The Corporation’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position.  The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2023, using an annual actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2022 rolled forward to June 30, 2023 using standard update procedures.  A summary of 
principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown below. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions  
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry-Age Normal 

Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.50%
Payroll Growth 2.75%
Projected Salary Increase (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% (2)
Mortality (3)

(1) Depending on entry age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation
(3) The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS 
      Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015

 
 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates.  
Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Discount Rate  
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.9%. To determine whether the municipal bond rate 
should be used in the calculation of a discount rate, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a 
discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.  Based on the testing, none of the 
tested plans run out of assets.  Therefore, the current 6.9% discount rate is adequate, and the use of the municipal 
bond rate calculation is not necessary.  The long-term expected discount rate of 6.9% is applied to all plans in the 
Public Employees Retirement Fund.   
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Such cash flows were developed 
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all 
future years.  Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were  
 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using 
the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the 
same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The 
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to 
the nearest one quarter of one percent.  
 

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was calculated using 
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  These geometric rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 

Assumed Asset
Asset Class Allocation Real Return (a),(b)

Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global Equity - Non-Cap-Weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High Yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage -5.00% -0.59%

     Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
(b) Figures based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management study.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the Plan follow: 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2023 99,583,180$         72,899,976$         26,683,204$             
Changes in the year:

Service cost 2,195,913             2,195,913                  
Interest on total pension liability 6,780,678             6,780,678                  

 Differences between actual and 
      expected experience (40,328)                  (40,328)                      
Changes in assumptions -                              
Changes in benefit terms 294,142                 294,142                     
Contribution - employer 3,194,575              (3,194,575)                
Contribution - employee 974,752                 (974,752)                    
Net investment income 4,493,250              (4,493,250)                

 Benefit payments, including refunds of 
      employee contributions (5,328,499)            (5,328,499)            
 Administrative expense (53,607)                  53,607                       
     Net changes 3,901,906             3,280,471              621,435                     

Balance at June 30, 2024 103,485,086$       76,180,447$         27,304,639$             
                                    

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 6.9%, as well as what 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 
1 percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Current
Discount Rate - Discount Rate Discount Rate +

1% (5.90%) (6.90%) 1% (7.90%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability 41,243,055$         27,304,639$         15,896,558$             

                                
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 
financial reports. 
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Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Corporation recognized pension expense of $5,021,664.  At June 30, 2024, the 
Corporation reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 3,011,986$           -$                            
Changes of assumptions 159,860                 
Differences between expected and actual experiences (79,456)                      
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on plan investments 3,493,532              

     Total 6,665,378$           (79,456)$                    
                                                                    

Deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2025.  All other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 
 

For the Year Ending June 30,
710,322$               
352,186                 

2,413,124             
98,304                   

Total 3,573,936$           
                               

2024
2025
2026
2027

 

Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation reported a payable of $49,476 and $53,719, respectively, for the 
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year then ended. 
 

Note 14:   Risk Management  
 
The Corporation manages its risk through the purchase of insurance through California State University Risk 
Management Authority (CSURMA), a public entity risk pool, for coverage of liability, property and general 
organizational risk. CSURMA provides self-insured risk with purchase of excess insurance.  The Corporation maintains 
general liability insurance coverage for individual claims up to $15 million per occurrence.  Unfair employment 
practices liability claims under $25,000 are self-insured.  The Corporation also maintains excess property insurance 
coverage to limits of $100 million in excess of $5,000 self-insured limits.   
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Events subsequent to June 30, 2024 have been evaluated through September 16, 2024, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.   
 
On September 5, 2024, the Corporation entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire privately developed 
and newly constructed real property, located in the city of San Luis Obispo, California.  The property consists of six 
three-story apartment buildings containing 120 total units of studio and one-bedroom apartments.  The acquisition 
price of $44 million will be financed with proceeds from the issuance of CSU Institute Commercial Paper Notes.  It is 
anticipated that the commercial paper notes will be replaced with proceeds from the issuance of the CSU SRBs during 
fiscal year 2024-25.  In connection with the acquisition of the property, it is anticipated that the Corporation will enter 
into multiple leases with employees of the University for use of individual units.  The real property acquisition is 
expected to close on or before October 4, 2024. 
 
On September 11, 2024, the Corporation executed an amendment to the line-of-credit agreement with University, 
extending the due date to June 30, 2025.  The line-of-credit was extended from the Corporation to the College of 
Agriculture, Food, & Environmental Sciences for construction of the JUSTIN and J. LOHR Center for Wine and 
Viticulture.    
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability
Service cost 939,038$            1,009,391$        961,325$          1,005,266$      957,397$         1,141,018$      1,086,684$      
Interest 1,773,035           2,013,419          1,918,691         1,966,797        1,876,206        2,032,225        1,923,754         
Differences between expected and actual experience 83,795                (1,453,342)         (60,281)             (226,327)          24,239              (1,012,510)      (269,900)           
Changes in assumptions -                       (3,795,339)         -                     (1,974,894)       -                    (2,904,595)      -                     
Benefit payments (1,415,823)         (1,388,572)         (1,431,612)        (1,501,317)       (1,522,318)       (1,424,857)      (1,119,651)       
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,380,045           (3,614,443)         1,388,123         (730,475)          1,335,524        (2,168,719)      1,620,887         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 27,035,208$      30,649,651$      29,261,528$     29,992,003$    28,656,479$    30,825,198$   29,204,311$    
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 28,415,253$      27,035,208$      30,649,651$     29,261,528$    29,992,003$    28,656,479$   30,825,198$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 335,744$            392,013$           478,753$          451,320$         594,645$         492,280$         296,314$          
Net investment income 1,412,731           (3,686,763)         5,937,894 514,291 1,486,549 1,469,561        2,405,355         
Benefit payments (1,415,823)         (1,388,572)         (1,431,612)        (1,501,317)       (1,522,318)       (1,424,857)      (1,119,651)       
Administrative expense (20,526)               (31,966)              (15,638)             (8,903)              (12,540)            (12,965)            (12,743)             
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 312,126              (4,715,288)         4,969,397         (544,609)          546,336            524,019           1,569,275         
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 25,921,600        30,636,888        25,667,491       26,212,100      25,665,764      25,141,745      23,572,470      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 26,233,726$      25,921,600$      30,636,888$     25,667,491$    26,212,100$    25,665,764$   25,141,745$    

Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) 2,181,527$        1,113,608$        12,763$             3,594,037$      3,779,903$      2,990,715$      5,683,453$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total OPEB liability 92.3% 95.9% 100.0% 87.7% 87.4% 89.6% 81.6%

Covered employee payroll 14,665,567$      12,757,999$      12,302,135$     13,055,768$    12,615,771$    11,941,343$   12,085,567$    

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payro 14.9% 8.7% 0.1% 27.5% 30.0% 25.0% 47.0%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown.

 
 
See accompanying independent auditor’s report.  
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Notes to Schedule: 
 
Benefit Changes:  There have been no changes to benefit terms since June 30, 2017.  
 
Changes of Assumptions:  The mortality, retirement, and withdrawal rates were updated to reflect the most recent experience study published by CalPERS. 
 
The average per capita claims cost was updated to reflect actual 2020 and 2021 premiums and caps and the health care cost trend rate was updated to reflect 2018 
industry survey data.  The population for curving and morbidity factors have also been updated to the 2019 CalPERS study.  
 
There have been no other changes in the assumptions since the last measurement date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Actuarially determined contribution N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contributions 335,744$            392,013$           478,753$          451,320$         594,645$         492,280$         296,314$          

Contribution deficiency (excess) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Employer contributions to the VEBA Trust 159,753$            153,065$           222,778$          235,568$         345,550$         234,262$         296,314$          
Active implicit rate subsidy transferred to VEBA Trust 175,991              238,948             255,975             215,752           249,095            258,018           

Total employer contributions 335,744$            392,013$           478,753$          451,320$         594,645$         492,280$         296,314$          

Covered employee payroll 14,665,567$      12,757,999$      12,302,135$     13,055,768$    12,615,771$    11,941,343$   12,085,567$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payro 2.3% 3.1% 3.9% 3.5% 4.7% 4.1% 2.5%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying independent auditor’s report.  
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Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation
Healthcare cost trend rates (pre-65) 7.60 percent for 2023, decreasing 0.20 percent per year 

to an ultimate rate of 4.80 percent for 2037 and later years
Healthcare cost trend rates (post-65) 6.20 percent for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of

4.80 percent for 2030 and later years
Salary Increases 2.80 percent
Investment rate of return 6.50 percent
Retirement Age

Mortality Mortality rates used in the valuation are those used in the most recent CalPERS valuations (CalPERS 2021 Mortality pre-retirement and post-
retirement with Scale MP-2021).

Entry Age Normal
Straight-l ine method
Market value of assets as of the measurement date
2.26 percent

Retirement rates used in the valuation are those used in the most recent CalPERS valuation, CalPERS 2021 Public Agency Miscellaneous 2% @ 55 
and 2% @ 60 for actives hired before January 1, 2013, and 2% @ 62 for actives hired on or after January 1, 2013.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying independent auditor’s report.  
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability
Service cost 2,195,913$       2,085,614$     2,023,659$     1,931,420$     1,829,285$     1,921,554$    1,914,269$     1,565,548$    1,403,277$     1,402,348$     
Interest on total pension liability 6,780,678 6,527,030 6,365,651 6,143,985 5,901,425 5,614,238       5,348,446        5,128,834       4,920,633        4,760,420        
Differences between expected 

and actual experience (40,328)                (1,245,175)       (298,927)           188,089 802,201 800,963           159,480             (207,770)          (888,401)           
Changes in assumptions -                           3,357,054 (437,649)          4,427,253        (1,192,843)       
Changes in benefits 294,142               
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of employee contributions (5,328,499)         (5,162,576)       (4,772,650)       (4,672,135)       (4,482,684)       (4,067,814)     (3,756,787)       (3,634,440)     (3,316,952)       (3,147,576)       
Net change in total pension liability 3,901,906          5,561,947        3,317,733        3,591,359        4,050,227        3,831,292       8,092,661        2,852,172       925,714             3,015,192        
Total pension liability - beginning 99,583,180       94,021,233     90,703,500     87,112,141     83,061,914     79,230,622    71,137,961     68,285,789    67,360,075     64,344,883     
Total pension liability - ending (a) 103,485,086$ 99,583,180$  94,021,233$  90,703,500$  87,112,141$  83,061,914$ 79,230,622$  71,137,961$ 68,285,789$  67,360,075$  

                                  
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 3,194,575$       2,876,749$     2,601,762$     2,487,230$     2,144,821$     1,789,867$    1,760,624$     1,570,071$    1,438,515$     1,281,507$     
Contributions - employee 974,752 860,962 823,786 814,326 756,141 673,081           683,416             636,058           561,411             461,197             
Net investment income 4,493,250          (6,077,688)       15,028,620 3,208,171 4,072,390 4,966,867       6,042,407        280,275           1,227,805        8,470,353        
Benefit payments (5,328,499)         (5,162,576)       (4,772,650)       (4,672,135)       (4,482,684)       (4,067,814)     (3,756,787)       (3,634,440)     (3,316,952)       (3,147,576)       
Administrative expense (53,607)                (50,117)              (66,767)              (91,764)              (44,559)              (269,175)          (81,063)              (34,182)             (63,120)              
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,280,471          (7,552,670)       13,614,751     1,745,828        2,446,109        3,092,826       4,648,597        (1,182,218)     (152,341)           7,065,481        
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 72,899,976       80,452,646     66,837,895     65,092,067     62,645,958     59,553,132    54,904,535     56,086,753    56,239,094     49,173,613     
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 76,180,447$    72,899,976$  80,452,646$  66,837,895$  65,092,067$  62,645,958$ 59,553,132$  54,904,535$ 56,086,753$  56,239,094$  

                                  
Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b) 27,304,639$    26,683,204$  13,568,587$  23,865,605$  22,020,074$  20,415,956$ 19,677,490$  16,233,426$ 12,199,036$  11,120,981$  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 73.6% 73.2% 85.6% 73.7% 74.7% 75.4% 75.2% 77.2% 82.1% 83.5%

Covered employee payroll $13,196,594 $12,451,424 $13,654,919 $12,997,443 $12,352,523 12,844,611$ 12,705,045$  11,885,419$ 10,733,343$  10,427,158$  

Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll 206.9% 214.3% 99.4% 183.6% 178.3% 158.9% 154.9% 136.6% 113.7% 106.7%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.
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Notes to Schedule: 
 
Benefit Changes:  The figures above include any liability impact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred after the June 30, 2021 valuation.  
However, offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred after the Valuation Date are not included in the figures above, unless the 
liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.  In 2022, SB 1168 increased the standard retiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death 
occurring on or after July 1, 2023. The impact, if any, is included in the changes of benefit terms.  
 
Changes of Assumptions:  There were no assumption changes in 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (June 30, 2022 measurement date), the accounting 
discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations 
as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. In addition, demographic assumptions and the price inflation assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2021, 
7.65% for measurement dates June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date June 30, 2014.  
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially determined contribution 3,194,575$       2,876,749$     2,601,762$     2,487,230$     2,144,821$     1,789,867$    1,760,624$     1,570,071$    1,438,515$     1,281,507$     
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
    determined contributions 3,194,575          2,876,749        2,601,762        2,487,230        2,144,821        1,789,867       1,760,624        1,570,071       1,438,515        1,281,507        
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                              -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                    -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                      

Covered employee payroll 13,196,594$    12,451,424$  13,654,919$  12,997,443$  12,352,523$  12,844,611$ 12,705,045$  11,885,419$ 10,733,343$  10,427,158$  

Contributions as a percentage of 
     covered-employee payroll 24.2% 23.1% 19.1% 19.1% 17.4% 13.9% 13.9% 13.2% 13.4% 12.3%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period
Asset Valuation Method

Inflation
Salary Increases
Payroll Growth
Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality 
improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.

The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.
7.00% net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes inflation.
2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
2.50%

Market value of assets as of the measurement date
Straight-line method
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
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Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $          21,696,546 

Short-term investments              71,162,946 

Accounts receivable, net              25,663,292 

Lease receivable, current portion 1,129,349 

P3 receivable, current portion -   

Notes receivable, current portion 640,785 

Pledges receivable, net 2,657,874 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,002,581 

Total current assets            125,953,373 

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 79,155 

Accounts receivable, net 24,433 

Lease receivable, net of current portion              27,858,776 

P3 receivable, net of current portion -   

Notes receivable, net of current portion -   

Student loans receivable, net -   

Pledges receivable, net 6,054,903 

Endowment investments 5,560,528 

Other long-term investments              24,393,895 

Capital assets, net            162,456,585 

Other assets 323,000 

Total noncurrent assets            226,751,275 

Total assets  $        352,704,648 

Deferred outflows of resources:

Unamortized loss on debt refunding  $ 166,959 

Net pension liability 2,492,945 

Net OPEB liability 6,665,378 

Leases -   

P3 -   

Others -   

Total deferred outflows of resources  $            9,325,282 

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable  $          10,005,244 

Accrued salaries and benefits 1,657,529 

Accrued compensated absences, current portion 1,038,646 

Unearned revenues              24,737,526 

Lease liabilities, current portion 244,614 

SBITA liabilities - current portion 337,133 

P3 liabilities - current portion -   

Long-term debt obligations, current portion              23,995,000 

portion 9,997 

Depository accounts -   

Other liabilities 6,696,732 

Total current liabilities              68,722,421 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 195,239 

Unearned revenues -   

Grants refundable -   

Lease liabilities, net of current portion 2,255,961 

SBITA liabilities, net of current portion 28,394 

P3 liabilities, net of current portion -   

Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion              41,283,259 

current portion -   

Depository accounts 6,124,871 

Net other postemployment benefits liability 2,181,527 

Net pension liability              27,304,639 

Other liabilities 955,058 

Total noncurrent liabilities              80,328,948 

Total liabilities            149,051,369 

Deferred inflows of resources:

P3 service concession arrangements -   

Net pension liability 79,456 

June 30, 2024

Schedule of Net Position

(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)
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Net OPEB liability                7,051,682 

Unamortized gain on debt refunding                             -   

Nonexchange transactions                             -   

Lease              28,464,032 

P3                             -   

Others              10,898,600 

Total deferred inflows of resources              46,493,770 

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets              75,496,044 

Restricted for:

Nonexpendable – endowments                             -   

Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships                             -   

Research                     58,076 

Loans                             -   

Capital projects                     52,449 

Debt service                             -   

Others              13,413,110 

Unrestricted              77,465,112 

Total net position  $        166,484,791 
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Revenues:

Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross  $                         -   

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                             -   

Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal              23,237,091 

State                9,820,366 

Local                   607,672 

Nongovernmental                3,821,851 

Sales and services of educational activities                             -   

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross              52,632,791 

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                             -   

Other operating revenues              22,748,509 

Total operating revenues            112,868,280 

Expenses:

Operating expenses:

Instruction                   511,053 

Research              24,117,249 

Public service              23,744,119 

Academic support                1,082,241 

Student services                2,380,545 

Institutional support              14,495,812 

Operation and maintenance of plant                1,360,199 

Student grants and scholarships                   374,662 

Auxiliary enterprise expenses              54,222,924 

Depreciation and amortization                5,260,153 

Total operating expenses            127,548,957 

Operating income (loss)             (14,680,677)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

State appropriations, noncapital                             -   

Federal financial aid grants, noncapital                             -   

State financial aid grants, noncapital                             -   

Local financial aid grants, noncapital                             -   

Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital                             -   

Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital                             -   

Gifts, noncapital                7,386,371 

Investment income (loss), net              10,451,939 

Endowment income (loss), net                             -   

Interest expense               (2,143,052)

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)              11,559,980 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)              27,255,238 

Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses)              12,574,561 

State appropriations, capital                             -   

Grants and gifts, capital              10,117,973 

Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments                             -   

Increase (decrease) in net position              22,692,534 

Net position:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported            143,792,257 

Restatements                             -   

Net position at beginning of year, as restated            143,792,257 

Net position at end of year  $        166,484,791 

  

  

Year ended June 30, 2024

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)
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1 Cash and cash equivalents:

Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments  $ 19,947 

All other restricted cash and cash equivalents 59,208 

Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents 79,155 

Current cash and cash equivalents               21,696,546 

Total $            21,775,701 

2.1 Composition of investments:

Investment Type Current Noncurrent Total

Money market funds  $ -   

Repurchase agreements -

Certificates of deposit -

U.S. agency securities -

U.S. treasury securities               11,835,319 390,757 12,226,076

Municipal bonds -

Corporate bonds -

Asset backed securities -

Mortgage backed securities -

Commercial paper -

Supranational -

Mutual funds               58,215,734               29,230,751 87,446,485

Exchange traded funds 18,255 - 18,255

Equity securities 769,786 769,786

Alternative investments:

Private equity (including limited partnerships) -

Hedge funds -

Managed futures -

Real estate investments (including REITs) 80,000 80,000

Commodities -

Derivatives -

Other alternative investment types -

Other external investment pools -

CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT) -

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) -

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) -

Other investments:

Cash and interest receivable pending long-term investment 239,324 248,692 488,016

Interest receivable 84,528 84,528

Agriculture related retains 4,223 4,223

-

                                -

Total Other investments 323,852 252,915 576,767

Total investments                71,162,946                29,954,423               101,117,369

Less endowment investments (enter as negative number) - (5,560,528)                (5,560,528)

Total investments, net of endowments  $           71,162,946  $           24,393,895  $            95,556,841 

2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments:

Investment Type

Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1)

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable Inputs 

(Level 3)
Net Asset Value 

(NAV)

Money market funds $ - 

Repurchase agreements -

Certificates of deposit -

U.S. agency securities -

U.S. treasury securities                12,226,076               12,226,076 

Municipal bonds -

Corporate bonds -

Asset backed securities -

Mortgage backed securities -

Commercial paper -

Supranational -

Mutual funds                87,446,485               87,446,485 

Exchange traded funds 18,255 18,255 

Cal Poly Corporation

Other Information

June 30, 2024

(for inclusion in the California State University)
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Equity securities                     769,786                    769,786 

Alternative investments:

Private equity (including limited partnerships)                                 -

Hedge funds                                 -

Managed futures                                 -

Real estate investments (including REITs)                       80,000                          80,000 

Commodities                                 -

Derivatives                                 -

Other alternative investment types                                 -

Other external investment pools                                 -

CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT)                                 -                              -                                -                                  -   

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)                                 -                              -                                -                                  -   

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)                                 -                              -                                -                                  -   

Other investments:

Cash and interest receivable pending long-term investment                     488,016                    488,016 

Interest receivable                       84,528                      84,528 

Agriculture related retains                         4,223                           4,223 

                                -

                                -

Total other investments:                     576,767                    572,544                              -                             4,223                                  -   

Total investments  $         101,117,369  $         101,033,146  $                          -    $                       4,223  $                      80,000 

2.3 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements:

Instruction: Amounts should agree with University's investments held on behalf of Discretely Presented 
Component Units.

Current Noncurrent Total
Investments held by the University under contractual agreements 
e.g. - CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT): $                             - 

3.1 Capital Assets, excluding ROU assets:

Composition of capital assets, excluding ROU assets:

Balance
June 30, 2023 Reclassifications

Prior Period 
Additions

Prior Period 
Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Retirements

Transfer of 
completed 

CWIP/PWIP
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable capital assets:

Land and land improvements  $           19,864,793  $               19,864,793  $    19,864,793 

Works of art and historical treasures                    198,000                         198,000              198,000

Construction work in progress (CWIP)               43,006,022                    43,006,022             49,443,722               (172,749)             (68,933,952)         23,343,043

Intangible assets:

Rights and easements                                -                                     -                         -

Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                -                                     -                         -

Intangible assets in progress (PWIP)                                -                                     -                         -

Licenses and permits                                -                                     -                         -

Other intangible assets:
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -

Total Other intangible assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Total intangible assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable capital assets  $           63,068,815  $                          -    $                          -    $                            -    $               63,068,815  $         49,443,722  $           (172,749)  $         (68,933,952)  $    43,405,836 

Depreciable/Amortizable capital assets:

Buildings and building improvements  $           55,292,681  $               55,292,681  $                14,840  $          66,117,691  $  121,425,212 

Improvements, other than buildings                    240,543                  (240,543)                                     -                         -

Infrastructure                                -                                     -                         -

Leasehold improvements               11,695,963                    240,543                    11,936,506                    64,448            (6,830,979)                   494,425           5,664,400

Personal property:

Equipment               13,262,863                    13,262,863                  471,914            (1,569,468)                2,321,836         14,487,145

Library books and materials                                -                                     -                         -

Intangible assets:

Software and websites                    789,763                         789,763                 (70,724)              719,039

Rights and easements                                -                                     -                         -

Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                -                                     -                         -
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Licenses and permits                    442,493                         442,493                    25,000                 (90,000)              377,493

Other intangible assets:
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -

Total Other intangible assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Total intangible assets                  1,232,256                                 -                                 -                                   -                      1,232,256                     25,000               (160,724)                                -           1,096,532

Total depreciable/amortizable capital assets                81,724,306                                 -                                 -                                   -                    81,724,306                   576,202            (8,561,171)               68,933,952       142,673,289

Total capital assets  $         144,793,121  $                          -    $                          -    $                            -    $             144,793,121  $         50,019,924  $        (8,733,920)  $                         -    $  186,079,125 

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:  (enter as negative number, 
except for reductions enter as positive number)

Buildings and building improvements  $         (10,362,864)  $             (10,362,864)  $          (2,879,530)  $  (13,242,394)

Improvements, other than buildings                                -                                     -                         -

Infrastructure                                -                                     -                         -

Leasehold improvements               (8,814,543)                   (8,814,543)                 (427,527)              5,549,692        (3,692,378)

Personal property:

Equipment               (8,505,096)                   (8,505,096)              (1,276,809)              1,379,069        (8,402,836)

Library books and materials                                -                                     -                         -

Intangible assets:

Software and websites                  (689,596)                      (689,596)                   (45,039)                   70,724           (663,911)

Rights and easements                                -                                     -                         -

Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                -                                     -                         -

Licenses and permits                  (416,743)                      (416,743)                     (5,917)                   69,750           (352,910)

Other intangible assets:
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -
                               -                                     -                         -

Total Other intangible assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Total intangible assets               (1,106,339)                                 -                                 -                                   -                   (1,106,339)                   (50,956)                  140,474                                -        (1,016,821)

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization             (28,788,842)                                 -                                 -                                   -                 (28,788,842)              (4,634,822)               7,069,235                                -      (26,354,429)

Total capital assets, net excluding ROU assets  $         116,004,279  $                          -    $                          -    $                            -    $             116,004,279  $         45,385,102  $        (1,664,685)  $                         -    $  159,724,696 

Capital Assets, Right of Use

Composition of capital assets - Lease ROU, net:
Balance

June 30, 2023
Prior Period 

Reclassifications
Prior Period 

Additions
Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable lease assets:

Land and land improvements  $                            -                                  —                       —

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable lease assets                              —                              —                               —                                 —                                  —                            —                           —                             —                       —

Depreciable/Amortizable lease assets:

Land and land improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Buildings and building improvements                 3,531,930                      3,531,930                  230,138                  (681,473)           3,080,595

Improvements, other than buildings                                -                                  —                       —

Infrastructure                                -                                  —                       —

Personal property:

Equipment                      86,400                           86,400                86,400

Total depreciable/amortizable lease assets                  3,618,330                              —                               —                                 —                      3,618,330                   230,138                           —                  (681,473)           3,166,995

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:  (enter as negative number, 
except for reductions enter as positive number)

Land and land improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Buildings and building improvements                  (553,050)                      (553,050)                 (475,926)                 681,476           (347,500)

Improvements, other than buildings                                -                                  —                       —

Infrastructure                                -                                  —                       —

Personal property:
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Equipment                  (420,097)                      (420,097)                   (17,280)           (437,377)

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                  (973,147)                              —                               —                                 —                      (973,147)                 (493,206)                  681,476                             —           (784,877)

Total capital assets - lease ROU, net  $             2,645,183  $                          -    $                          -    $                            -    $                 2,645,183  $             (263,068)  $             681,476  $              (681,473)  $      2,382,118 

Composition of capital assets - SBITA ROU, net
Balance

June 30, 2023 Reclassifications
Prior Period 

Additions
Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Depreciable/Amortizable SBITA assets:

Software  $                699,592  $                    699,592  $         699,592 

Total depreciable/amortizable SBITA assets                     699,592                                 -                                 -                                   -                         699,592                               -                              -                                -              699,592

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Software                  (174,898)                      (174,898)                 (174,923)           (349,821)

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                  (174,898)                                 -                                 -                                   -                      (174,898)                 (174,923)                              -                                -           (349,821)

Total capital assets - SBITA ROU, net  $                524,694  $                          -    $                          -    $                            -    $                    524,694  $             (174,923)  $                       -    $                         -    $         349,771 

Composition of capital assets - P3 ROU, net:
Balance

June 30, 2023 Reclassifications
Prior Period 

Additions
Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable P3 assets:

Land and land improvements  $                            -                                  —                       —

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable P3 assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Depreciable/Amortizable P3 assets:

Land and land improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Buildings and building improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Improvements, other than buildings                                -                                  —                       —

Infrastructure                                -                                  —                       —

Personal property:

Equipment                                -                                  —                       —

Total depreciable/amortizable P3 assets                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Land and land improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Buildings and building improvements                                -                                  —                       —

Improvements, other than buildings                                -                                  —                       —

Infrastructure                                -                                  —                       —

Personal property:

Equipment                                -                                  —                       —

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -                         -

Total capital assets - P3 ROU, net                              —                              —                               —                                 —                                  —                            —                           —                             —                       —

Total capital assets, net including ROU assets  $  162,456,585 

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense:

Depreciation and amortization expense related to capital assets $              4,634,822 

Amortization expense - Leases ROU                     493,206

Amortization expense - SBITA ROU                     174,923

Amortization expense - P3 ROU                                 -
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Depreciation and Amortization expense - Others                    (42,798)
Provide explanation 
for others:

Depreciation on life 
interest asset (GASB 
81)

Total depreciation and amortization $              5,260,153 

4 Long-term liabilities:

Balance
June 30, 2023

Prior Period 
Adjustments/Recla

ssifications

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024 Current Portion
Noncurrent 

Portion

1. Accrued compensated absences  $                929,562  $                 929,562  $                   981,713  $                  (677,390)  $           1,233,885  $          1,038,646  $               195,239 

2. Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses                      19,997                        19,997 -10000                       9,997 9997                                -

3. Capital lease obligations (pre-ASC 842):

Gross balance                                -                                 -                               -                                -

Unamortized net premium/(discount)                                -                                 -                               -                              -                                -

Total capital lease obligations (pre ASC 842)                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -

4. Long-term debt obligations:

4.1 Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related)                                -                                 -                            -                             -                                  -

4.2 Commercial paper                                -                                 -                            -                                  -

4.3 Notes payable (SRB related)               37,090,000                 37,090,000                  23,210,000                      (750,000)             59,550,000            23,995,000               35,555,000

4.4 Finance purchase of capital assets                                -                                 -                            -                                  -

4.5 Others:
                               -                                 -                            -                                  -
                               -                                 -                            -                                  -
                               -                                 -                            -                                  -
                               -                                 -                            -                                  -

Total others                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -

Sub-total long-term debt                37,090,000                                 -                 37,090,000                   23,210,000                      (750,000)              59,550,000             23,995,000               35,555,000

4.6 Unamortized net bond premium/(discount)                 5,966,854                   5,966,854 -238595                5,728,259                              -                 5,728,259

Total long-term debt obligations  $           43,056,854  $                          -    $            43,056,854  $              23,210,000  $                  (988,595)  $         65,278,259  $        23,995,000  $          41,283,259 

5. Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities:
Balance

June 30, 2023

Prior Period 
Adjustments/Recla

ssifications Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024 Current Portion
Noncurrent 

Portion

Lease liabilities  $             2,731,611  $                  (231,036)  $           2,500,575  $             244,614  $            2,255,961 

SBITA liabilities                    392,456                        (26,929)                  365,527                 337,133                      28,394

P3 liabilities - SCA                                -                            -                                  -

P3 liabilities - non-SCA                                -                               -                                -

Sub-total P3 liabilities                                 -                                 -                                 -                                   -                                     -                               -                              -                                -

Total Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities $              3,124,067                                 -                                 -                                   -                      (257,965)                2,866,102                  581,747                 2,284,355

Total long-term liabilities $          69,388,243 $         25,625,390 $           43,762,853 

5 Future minimum payments schedule - leases, SBITA, P3:

Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:

2025                    244,651                      49,449                      294,100                       337,096                          18,617                   355,713                          -                 581,747                   68,066                 649,813

2026                    255,822                      44,739                      300,561                         28,431                            1,601                     30,032                          -                 284,253                   46,340                 330,593

2027                    251,062                      39,918                      290,980                               -                          -                 251,062                   39,918                 290,980

2028                    255,343                      35,084                      290,427                               -                          -                 255,343                   35,084                 290,427

2029                    264,368                      30,102                      294,470                               -                          -                 264,368                   30,102                 294,470

2030 - 2034                    819,329                      92,408                      911,737                               -                          -                 819,329                   92,408                 911,737

2035 - 2039                    410,000                      11,132                      421,132                               -                          -                 410,000                   11,132                 421,132

2040 - 2044                                 -                               -                          -                            -                            -                            -

Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilitiesPublic-Private or Public-Public Partnerships (P3)SBITA liabilitiesLease Liabilities
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2045 - 2049                                 -                               -                          -                            -                            -                            -

2050 - 2054                                 -                               -                          -                            -                            -                            -

Thereafter                                 -                               -                          -                            -                            -                            -

Total minimum lease payments $              2,500,575                     302,832                   2,803,407                        365,527                           20,218                   385,745                              -                                -                          -              2,866,102                 323,050              3,189,152

Less: amounts representing interest              (323,050)

Present value of future minimum lease payments              2,866,102

Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities              2,866,102

Less: current portion              (581,747)

Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities, net of current portion $          2,284,355 

6 Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt obligations:

Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:

2025                                 -                  23,995,000                     1,641,650              25,636,650             23,995,000                 1,641,650         25,636,650

2026                                 -                       825,000                     1,603,275                2,428,275                  825,000                 1,603,275           2,428,275

2027                                 -                       870,000                     1,563,025                2,433,025                  870,000                 1,563,025           2,433,025

2028                                 -                       920,000                     1,520,650                2,440,650                  920,000                 1,520,650           2,440,650

2029                                 -                       960,000                     1,475,900                2,435,900                  960,000                 1,475,900           2,435,900

2030 - 2034                                 -                    5,595,000                     6,031,800              11,626,800               5,595,000                 6,031,800         11,626,800

2035 - 2039                                 -                    6,500,000                     5,329,800              11,829,800               6,500,000                 5,329,800         11,829,800

2040 - 2044                                 -                    7,680,000                     3,850,150              11,530,150               7,680,000                 3,850,150         11,530,150

2045 - 2049                                 -                    9,565,000                     2,097,100              11,662,100               9,565,000                 2,097,100         11,662,100

2050 - 2054                                 -                    2,640,000                        372,150                3,012,150               2,640,000                    372,150           3,012,150

Thereafter                                 -                               -                              -                                -                          -

Total minimum payments $                             -                                 -                                 -                   59,550,000                    25,485,500              85,035,500             59,550,000               25,485,500         85,035,500

Less: amounts representing interest      (25,485,500)

Present value of future minimum payments         59,550,000

Unamortized net premium/(discount)           5,728,259

Total long-term debt obligations         65,278,259

Less: current portion      (23,995,000)

Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion $     41,283,259 

7 Transactions with related entities:
Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, 
grants, and other programs  $             4,329,278 

Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel               27,317,950 

Payments received from University for services, space, and programs               15,631,723 

Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units                    926,948 

Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units                 5,765,806 

Accounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number)               (1,382,956)

Other amounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number)

Accounts receivable from University (enter as positive number)                 2,647,926 

Other amounts receivable from University (enter as positive number)                    640,785 

8 Restatements

Note: Additional account details can be found in the Table of Object Codes and 
CSU Fund Definitions Debit/(Credit)

Restatement #1

Select the reason for restatement:

Select net position category:

Restatement #2

Select the reason for restatement:

Select net position category:

                                 —

9 Natural classifications of operating expenses:

Total long-term debt obligationsAll other long-term debt obligationsAuxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related)

Provide a detailed breakdown of the journal entries (at the financial statement line items level) booked to record each restatement:

Enter transaction description

Enter transaction description

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 80
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Salaries Benefits - Other Benefits - Pension Benefits - OPEB
Scholarships and 

fellowships
Supplies and 
other services

Depreciation and 
amortization

Total operating 
expenses

Instruction                               45,071                                 9,109                                  9,191                                        735                           446,947                    511,053

Research                          9,168,150                             710,594                           1,869,736                                 149,445                      12,219,324               24,117,249

Public service                          7,074,075                          1,354,555                           1,442,673                                 115,310                      13,757,506               23,744,119

Academic support                               67,223                               24,274                                13,709                                     1,096                           975,939                 1,082,241

Student services                               60,367                               19,534                                12,311                                        984                        2,287,349                 2,380,545

Institutional support                          5,122,998                          1,586,371                           1,044,774                                   83,507                        6,658,162               14,495,812

Operation and maintenance of plant                             158,415                               43,196                                32,307                                     2,583                        1,123,698                 1,360,199

Student grants and scholarships                                  374,662                    374,662

Auxiliary enterprise expenses                          2,927,164                          1,730,498                              596,961                                   47,714                      48,920,587               54,222,924

Depreciation and amortization                      5,260,153                 5,260,153

Total operating expenses $            24,623,463                  5,478,131                   5,021,662                        401,374                         374,662              86,389,512               5,260,153             127,548,957

Select type of pension plan >>
Defined Benefit 
Plan

10 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:

1. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows - unamortized loss on refunding(s)  $                166,959 

Deferred outflows - net pension liability                 6,665,378 

Deferred outflows - net OPEB liability                 2,492,945 

Deferred outflows - leases

Deferred outflows - P3

Deferred outflows - others:

Sales/intra-entity transfers of future revenues

Gain/loss on sale leaseback

Loan origination fees and costs

Change in fair value of hedging derivative instrument

Irrevocable split-interest agreements

Total deferred outflows - others                                 -

Total deferred outflows of resources $              9,325,282 

2. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows - service concession arrangements

Deferred inflows - net pension liability  $                  79,456 

Deferred inflows - net OPEB liability                 7,051,682 

Deferred inflows - unamortized gain on debt refunding(s)

Deferred inflows - nonexchange transactions

Deferred inflows - leases               28,464,032 

Deferred inflows - P3

Deferred inflows - others:

Sales/intra-entity transfers of future revenues

Gain/loss on sale leaseback

Loan origination fees and costs

Change in fair value of hedging derivative instrument

Irrevocable split-interest agreements               10,898,600 

Total deferred inflows - others                10,898,600

Total deferred inflows of resources $            46,493,770 

11 Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Other nonoperating revenues  $           11,559,980 

Other nonoperating (expenses)

Total other nonoperating revenues (expenses)  $           11,559,980 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 81
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Statements of Financial Position of the California State 

University – San Luis Obispo Alumni Association 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

2024 2023
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 76,876$         95,054$         
Certificates of deposit 34,555           34,552           
Accounts receivable 259,261         249,108         
Inventories - - 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,206              - 

Total current assets 375,898         378,714         

Other assets:
Investments 652,148         617,011         
Fixed assets, net 2,228              3,443              

Total assets 1,030,274$   999,168$       

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 19$  135$               
Total current l iabil ities 19 135 

Net assets:
Unrestricted:

Undesignated 1,030,255      999,033         
Total unrestricted net assets 1,030,255      999,033         

Total l iabil ities and net assets 1,030,274$   999,168$       

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 



84 

Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Statements of Activities of the California State 

University – San Luis Obispo Alumni Association 
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

2024 2023
Unrestricted revenue and support:

Donations and grants 15,421$         19,494$         
Travel and promotion 20,185           25,771           
Homecoming
Investment gain 64,693           40,836           
External activities 35,351           31,807           

Total unrestricted revenue and support 135,650         117,908         

Expenses:
Program services:

Salaries and wages
Cost of goods sold
Postage 10 165 
Tax preparation 2,400              2,400              
Travel 899 1,536              
Office expense 21,715           17,598           
Accounting services 5,473              8,726              
Hosting special events 10,614           59,883           
External activities 45,476           41,894           
Scholarships 16,541           6,387              
Depreciation 1,215              1,215              
Other 85 13,152           

Total expenses 104,428         152,956         

Change in unrestricted net assets 31,222           (35,048)          

Unrestricted net assets - beginning of year 999,033         1,034,081      

Unrestricted net assets - end of year 1,030,255$   999,033$       

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
San Luis Obispo, California 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal 
Poly Partners (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated September 16, 2024.   

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant  
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

 
Glenn Burdette Attest Corporation 
San Luis Obispo, California 
 
September 16, 2024 
 
 
  



5 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 
and on Internal Control Over Compliance and on the Schedule of Expenditures of 

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
San Luis Obispo, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the compliance of Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners (the Corporation), a component unit of 
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Corporation’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.  The Corporation's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2024.   

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the Unites States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.   

We are required to be independent of Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners, and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance  
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
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implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,  
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Corporation’s federal 
programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Corporation’s 
compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.  
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the Corporation’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the Corporation’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit.  

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A  
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significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.   
 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  
 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements.  
We issued our report thereon dated September 16, 2024, which contained an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements.  Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Corporation’s financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

 
Glenn Burdette Attest Corporation 
San Luis Obispo, California 
 
September 16, 2024 



Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

Research and Development Cluster of Programs

US Department of Agriculture:

AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH BASIC AND APPLIED RESEARCH 10.001 58-2038-3-028 415,051$         208,140$        

WILDLIFE SERVICES 10.028 AP24WSNWRC00C002 739

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10.167 22-TMTSD-CA-0007 63,374

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10.167 22-TMTSD-CA-0006 122,381

Subtotal 601,545 208,140

SPECIALTY CROP BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM - FARM

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD) 10.170 23-0001-031-SF 851

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD) 10.170 21-0001-040-SF 209,754

10.170 21-0433-033-SF 153,643

10.170 22-0001-028-SF 127,481 54,287

10.170 22-0001-041-SF 108,644 48,770

10.170 22-0001-040-SF 87,527

10.170 A22-2217-S003 50,158

10.170 A23-0954-S001 1,127

10.170 VMKCPSLO2022 63,136

Subtotal 802,320 103,058

10.202 NI22MSCFRXXXG004 27,257

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 14,256

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 5,568

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 2,612

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 22,727

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 13,617

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 12,388

10.202 NI23MSCFRXXXG010 20,031

10.202 NI24MSCFRXXXG003 9,144

10.202 NI24MSCFRXXXG003 26,056

10.202 NI24MSCFRXXXG003 957

10.202 NI24MSCFRXXXG003 2,443

10.202 NI24MSCFRXXXG003 9,937

Subtotal 166,993

1890 INSTITUTION CAPACITY BUILDING GRANTS

10.216 261

Subtotal 261

10.217 2021-70003-35735 272,552 231,961

10.217 7,984

 AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL ECONOMIC RESEARCH, COOP AGREEMENTS AND COLLAB

10.250 1,819

10.253 58-4000-9-0028 2,431

10.253 58-4000-0-0069 13,678

Subtotal 298,463 231,961

AGRICULTURAL MARKET AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH

10.290 12,181

Subtotal 12,181

10.309 2,865

10.309 33,786

10.309 98,449

10.309 50,497

10.310 40,909 22,544

SPECIALTY CROP RESEARCH INITIATIVE 

Pass Through UNIV OF CA DAVIS  (UC DAVIS) A23-1488-S002

SUB00003034

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD)

Pass Through VILMORIN-MIKADO USA INC  (VILMO MIKA)

2023-70003-38771

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD)

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD)

AGRICULTURE AND FOOD RESEARCH INITIATIVE 

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

2023-51181-41161

Pass Through CA DEPT OF FOOD AND AG  (CA FOOD)

Pass Through UNIV OF CA DAVIS  (UC DAVIS)

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

Pass Through UNIV OF CA DAVIS  (UC DAVIS)

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

Pass Through HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY  (HUMBOLDT)

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

2019-38821-29144-CALPOLY

HIGHER EDUCATION - INSTITUTION CHALLENGE GRANTS PROGRAM

Pass Through OKLAHOMA STATE UNIV  (OKLA SU)

Pass Through WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY (SP)  (WASH UN)

2-570230.CPU

CONSUMER DATA AND NUTRITION RESEARCH

Pass ThroughUNIV OF GEORGIA  (UNIV GA)

CONSUMER DATA AND NUTRITION RESEARCH

136736 SPC004635

2020-67017-31272

Pass Through NORTH CAROLINA STATE UNI  (NCSU) 2021-2518-01

Pass Through ALABAMA A&M UNIVERSITY  (AAMU)

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY RESEARCH
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Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

10.310 96,484$           

10.310 8,157

Subtotal 331,148 22,544

10.326 22,774              -                       

10.326 29,998

10.326 14,616

10.326 242,302 8,920

10.326 33,762 13,565

10.326 25,589

Subtotal 369,041 22,484

STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MATCHING GRANTS FOR SNAP

10.561 80,676

10.561 162,715

10.561 38,870

10.561 39,446

Subtotal 321,706

FORESTRY RESEARCH

10.652 312,719

Subtotal 312,719

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY PROGRAM - STATE FOREST ACTION PLANS

10.664 367,648

Subtotal 367,648

FOREST HEALTH PROTECTION

10.680 38,802

Subtotal 38,802

INTERNATIONAL FORESTRY PROGRAMS

10.684 15,795

Subtotal 15,795

10.699 147,274

10.707 34,809

WATERSHED PROTECTION AND FLOOD PREVENTION

10.904 33,052

Subtotal 215,136

3,853,758 588,188

INTEGRATED OCEAN OBSERVING SYSTEM (IOOS)

11.012 94,523

11.012 76,656

11.012 109,920

11.012 142,199

11.012 52,206

Subtotal 475,504

UNIV CTR EDA NORTH STATE, SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY, AND CENTRAL COAST CONSORTIUM

11.303 15,171

Subtotal 15,171

SEA GRANT SUPPORT

11.417 132,412

11.417 21,492

11.417 33,203

Pass Through UNIVERSITY FLORIDA  (UNV FLOR)

Pass Through CSU CHICO (CS CHICO)

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

SUB00003030

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

CAPACITY BUILDING FOR NON-LAND GRANT COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE 2023-70001-41001

2020-70001-31295

2021-70001-34525

2022-70001-37576

2021-70001-34777

2020-70002-31296

Pass Through CSU CHICO  (CS CHICO) SUB20-010

Pass Through CSU CHICO  (CS CHICO) A22-0055-S010

Pass Through CSU CHICO  (CS CHICO) A22-0055-S010

Pass Through CSU CHICO  (CS CHICO) SUB20-010

Pass Through THE XERCES SOCIETY INC  (XERCES)

Pass Through UNIV OF MONTANA  (UNIV MT)

Pass Through MONTEREY BAY AQUARIUM INST  (MBA) EXTENSION MEMO 6-24-24

20-CR-11272167-067

PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENTS

22-399

Total US Department of Agriculture

Department of Commerce:

Pass Through CA FORESTRY FIRE PROTECT  (CA FFP) 8GA22400

Pass Through MONTEREY BAY AQUARIUM INST  (MBA) EXTENSION MEMO 6-24-24

A23-0036-S002

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD) EXTENSION MEMO 6-24-24

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD)

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD) EXTENSION MEMO 6-24-24

70584-CA SEA GRANT A/E-39

AGRICULTURE AND FOOD RESEARCH INITIATIVE 2023-67037-40316

21-CS-11052021-201

706018

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD)

CALPOL23-4132

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD)

706309

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD) 705734

RESEARCH JOINT VENTURE AND COST REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENTS

Pass Through GRAHAM COUNTY  (GRAHAMCY)

Pass Through UC REGENTS DAVIS  (UC REG3) A22-1469-S001

PG23-65304-01
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Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

11.417 25,313$           

11.417 5,278

11.472 93,614              

11.472 6,056

Subtotal 317,369

MEASUREMENT AND ENGINEERING RESEARCH AND STANDARDS

11.609 1,883$              -$                 

Subtotal 1,883

ARRANGEMENTS FOR INTERDISCIPLINARY RESEARCH INFRASTRUCTURE

11.619 108

Subtotal 108

810,035

CONSERV AND REHAB OF NATURAL RESOURCES ON MILITARY INSTALLATIONS 12.005 62,928

Subtotal 62,928

NATIONAL DEFENSE EDUCATION PROGRAM

12.006 152,494

Subtotal 152,494

BASIC AND APPLIED SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH 12.300 93,717

Subtotal 93,717

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

12.600 39

Subtotal 39

ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT ASSISTANCE FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS

12.617 25,000

Subtotal 25,000

BASIC, APPLIED, AND ADVANCED RESEARCH IN SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

12.630 64,062

Subtotal 64,062

GENCYBER GRANTS PROGRAM 12.903 57,618

RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT 12.910 246,383

Subtotal 304,001

12.U02 6,232

12.U02 17,740

12.U02 85,350

12.U02 94,652

12.U02 10,272

12.U02 2023-68-01 19,892

12.U02 TUL-SCC-562200-23/24 8,299

12.U02 121,943

Subtotal 364,380

1,066,621

15.246 36,562

15.246 15,778

15.423 25,619

15.423 43,006

15.423 33,865

15.560 1,257,333 161,163

STATE WILDLIFE GRANTS

15.634 69,635

THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

Pass Through OFFICE OF PLANNING & RESEARCH  (OPR)

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Pass Through ADMIN OF THE TULANE ED FUND  (TULANE U)

22-F17-03Pass Through BLUE WORLD RESEARCH INSTITUTE INC  (BWRI)

OPR20125

Total Department of Commerce

Total US Department of Defense

BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT (BOEM) ENVIRON STUDIES PROGRAM

SECURE WATER ACT - RESESARCH AGREEMENTS

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD)

Pass Through EMPIRICAL SYSTEMS AEROSPACE, INC.  (EMP SYS)

KK2233

Pass Through OWL INTERGRATIONS  (OWL)

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF ST. THOMAS  (ST THOMAS)

23-363

Pass Through UC REGENT DAVIS (UC REG3)

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD) 703759

Pass Through UNIV OF DELAWARE  (UNIV DE) PC4.1-204

NA20NMF4720282UNALLIED SCIENCE PROGRAM

W9126G-21-2-0022

21-144G

US Department of Defense:

Pass Through UNIV OF SAN DIEGO  (UCSD) KR 705176

Pass Through UNIV OF CA SANTA BARBARA (UCSB) KK2310

N00014-20-1-2169

Pass Through PACIFIC STATES MARINE  (PSMFC)

Pass Through WORCHESTER POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE  (WPI) 11176-GR

705662

H98230-22-1-0159

F4FBQV2167M002

FA8650-23-1-2205

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

2022.04.01.AFSTTR

Department of Interior:

M16AC00023

Pass Through UNIV OF CA SANTA BARBARA  (UCSB)

R22AC00295-00

L22AC00360

A23-012-S002

L22AC00357

Pass Through UNANIMOUS AI.  (UNANIMOUS)

Pass Through PROJECT-OWL  (PROJECTOWL) 22-623

IPA000-23-0-0006

Pass Through OFFICE OF PLANNING & RESEARCH  (OPR)

23-374

OPR21132

See accompanying notes to the schedule of federal awards . 10



Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

15.678 8,687$              

Subtotal 1,490,484 161,163

15.807 13,111              

Subtotal 13,111

1,503,596 161,163

Department of Transportation

UNIVERSITY TRANSPORTATION CENTERS PROGRAM

20.701 17,935              - 

20.701 18,192

Subtotal 36,127

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

20.U10 78,326 9,700

Subtotal 78,326 9,700

114,453 9,700

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

43.001 4,280

43.001 45,658

Subtotal 49,938

SPACE TECHNOLOGY

43.012 39,551

Subtotal 39,551

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION 43.U01 9,041

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION 43.U01 9,172

43.U01 43,447

Subtotal 61,659

151,148

National Endowment for Humanties:

NAT'L ENDOWMENT FOR HUM  (NEH)

45.164 69,975

Subtotal 69,975

69,975

47.041 15,764

47.041 33,416

47.041 26,656

47.041 16,055

47.041 6,470

47.041 87,945

47.041 91,003

47.041 43,769

47.041 31,438

47.041 1,559

47.041 130,124

47.041 60,944

47.041 15,878

47.041 8,941

Subtotal 569,962

21-342

Total Department of Interior

Pass Through QUANSIGHT LLC  (QUANSIGHT)

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS ARLINGTON  (UNIV ARL)

ENGINEERING GRANTS

EARTHQUAKE HAZARDS PROGRAM ASSISTANCE

Total National Endowment for Humanties

Total Department of Transportation

ENGINEERING GRANTS

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS ARLINGTON  (UNIV ARL)

022-07

SCIENCE

COOPERATIVE ECOSYSTEM STUDIES UNIT F20AC10888

1693195

Pass Through CA DEPT OF TRANSPORTATIO  (CA TRNS)

022-04

HST-GO-17103.001-A

HST-AR-17063.001-A

Pass Through CAL STATE LA UNIVERSITY AUX SERV INC  (CAL STATE) SLO231721

741415

Pass Through EMPIRICAL SYSTEMS AEROSPACE, INC.  (EMP SYS) 2022.11.01.AFSTTR

Total National Aeronautics and Space Administration

National Science Foundation:

1708919ENGINEERING GRANTS

Pass Through WILLIAM MARSH RICE UNIVERSITY  (WMRICE UNV) X03079431

1929478

ENGINEERING GRANTS 2234256

ENGINEERING GRANTS 2329759

ENGINEERING GRANTS

ENGINEERING GRANTS 2300890

ENGINEERING GRANTS 2114223

1751314

2054191

2024570ENGINEERING GRANTS

2305431

Pass Through VILLANOVA UNIVERSITY  (VILLA) 525886CALPOLY

Pass Through SUNY COLLEGE OF ENV SCIENCE & FORESTRY  (SUNY) 550-1169588-91811

2301780

ENGINEERING GRANTS

G23AP00499-00

ENGINEERING GRANTS 2138756

ENGINEERING GRANTS
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Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

47.049 53,299$           

47.049 8,892

47.049 34,177

47.049 69,215

47.049 2,805                

47.049 40,929

47.049 40,999

47.049 50,895

47.049 80,781

47.049 72,498              

47.049 9,335

47.049 32,072

47.049 9,095                -                       

47.049 31,864

47.049 176,864 80,338

47.049 157,882 13,302

47.049 10,787

47.049 59,789

47.049 18,177

Subtotal 960,356 93,640

47.050 169,445

47.050 59,423 17,845

47.050 61,753

47.050 7,375

Subtotal 297,996 17,845

47.070 17,832

47.070 133,015

47.070 25,940

47.070 69,735

47.070 133,301

47.070 109,824

Subtotal 489,647

47.074 19,473

47.074 (2,421)

47.074 104,537

47.074 82,980

47.074 36,044

47.074 3,544

Subtotal 244,157

47.075 4,062

47.075 78,093

47.075 95,753

Subtotal 177,909

47.076 894,040

47.076 103,053

47.076 427,690

47.076 2,406

47.076 16,477

47.076 38,936 36,354

47.076 41,780

47.076 149,790

47.076 50,279

47.076 140,549

47.076 469,783 63,843

47.076 16,753

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES 2012154

2003459

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES 2310000

2234073

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

2122550

2034323MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

2055098MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

1709740MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

1856535MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

SOCIAL, BEHAVIORAL, AND ECONOMIC SCIENCES

SOCIAL, BEHAVIORAL, AND ECONOMIC SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

1909297

1913313

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

2012549

2104573

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

1952691

2205976

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

2402345

2231701MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

GEOSCIENCES 2242164

2218943

1913374

2204782

Pass Through VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE  (VA TECH) 480717-19C54

MATHEMATICAL AND PHYSICAL SCIENCES

1543539

1924537

GEOSCIENCES

GEOSCIENCES

2013280GEOSCIENCES

1924008

2216687COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

2128951COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

2208458

2220888

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

2144822

1949109

2316363

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

1802301

1922718

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

Pass Through OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY  (OSU) S2210A-D

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES 2321487

1917707SOCIAL, BEHAVIORAL, AND ECONOMIC SCIENCES

2313969

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

1834128

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

1916056

1935108

2142404

1852738EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

2140288

1940701

1821638

2215655

2201121

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

2141871
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Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

47.076 1,781$              

47.076 58,990

47.076 28,486

47.076 35,642

47.076 785

47.076 18,783              

47.076 302

47.076 38,397

47.076 61,848

47.076 12,831

47.076 56,703

Subtotal 2,666,081 100,197

47.078 40,482

Subtotal 40,482

47.083 7,098                -                       

Subtotal 7,098

47.084 30,923

47.084 32,059

47.084 28,044

Subtotal 91,026

5,544,714 211,683

NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM

66.456 5,530

Subtotal 5,530

5,530

81.049 98,601

81.049 6,346

81.049 153,534

Subtotal 258,481

RENEWABLE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

81.087 670

81.087 5,000

81.087 3,917

Subtotal 9,587

FOSSIL ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

81.089 115,740

Subtotal 115,740

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Pass Through BROOKHAVEN SCIENCE ASSOC LLC  (BRKHAVEN) 81.U03 75,738

Pass Through LAWRENCE LIVERMORE (LLNL) 81.U03 7,879

Pass Through LAWRENCE LIVERMORE (LLNL) 81.U03 3,289

Pass Through LAWRENCE LIVERMORE (LLNL) 81.U03 17,128

Pass Through LAWRENCE LIVERMORE (LLNL) 81.U03 1,314

Pass Through LAWRENCE LIVERMORE (LLNL) 81.U03 4,823

Subtotal 110,171

493,978

US Department of Health and Human Services:

93.085 14,803

NIEHS SUPERFUND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

93.143 15,301

93.286 19,560

413470

B662297

B644469

RESEARCH ON RESEARCH INTEGRITY

Pass ThroughCONFIDENTIAL  (CONFIDNTL) 4700010741

4700008965

National Estuary Program:

A20-0003-S002

NSF TECHNOLOGY, INNOVATION AND PARTNERSHIPS 2403992

C-5198Pass Through FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY  (FLA SU)

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF OREGON  (UNIV OR) 2016W0D

Pass Through SUPERIOR STATISTICAL RESEARCH LLC  (SUP STATS) IUSE-CALPOLY-2023

OFFICE OF INTEGRATIVE ACTIVITIES

2346620

NSF TECHNOLOGY, INNOVATION AND PARTNERSHIPS 2413962

Pass Through UNIVERISTY ALABAMA  (UNI ALBAMA)

DISCOVERY AND APPLIED RESEARCH FOR TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATIONS

Pass Through UNIV OF CA SANTA BARBARA  (UCSB) KK2325

Pass Through CHICO STATE ENT  (CHICO ST) SUB20-028

Pass Through SACRAMENTO UNIV ENT INC  (SAC UE) 533026-A6

Pass Through CSU FRESNO  (CSU FRE) SC330590-21-03

Pass Through SACRAMENTO UNIV ENT INC  (SAC UE) 533025-A5

Pass Through CSU LA UNIV AUX SVCS INC  (CSU LA) CSUSLO231755

Pass Through SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY  (SFSU) S18-0003

EDUCATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES 2314994

2218742POLAR PROGRAMS

Total National Science Foundation

NSF TECHNOLOGY, INNOVATION AND PARTNERSHIPS

Total National Estuary Program

Pass Through BAY FDN OF MORRO BAY  (FND MB) BAY FOUNDATION MORRO BAY

B662353

US Department of Energy:

DE-SC0019287

Pass Through MICROBIO ENGINEERING  (MICROBIO) 21-600

OFFICE OF SCIENCE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Pass Through MICROBIO ENGINEERING  (MICROBIO) 23-930

NCAT

B630769

B657526

Pass Through MICROBIO ENGINEERING  (MICROBIO) 22-534

Pass Through NATIONAL CENTER FOR APPROPRIATE TECHNOLOGY  

Total US Department of Energy

1ORIIR210067-01-00

Pass Through UTAH STATE UNIVERSITY  (UTAH UN) 10058542-02-CAPO

FAIN# R25EB032764

Pass ThroughCONFIDENTIAL  (CONFIDNTL)
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Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

MINORITY HEALTH AND HEALTH DISPARITIES RESEARCH

93.307 70,082$           

93.307 26,376

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND LABORATORY CAPACITY FOR INFECTIOUS DISEASES (ELC)

93.323 3,227

CANCER DETECTION AND DIAGNOSIS RESEARCH

93.394 35,966

93.837 689,996           374,351          

93.837 (10,582)

93.837 8,050

ARTHRITIS, MUSCULOSKELETAL AND SKIN DISEASES RESEARCH

93.846 3,756

93.846 162,024

DIABETES, DIGESTIVE, AND KIDNEY DISEASES EXTRAMURAL RESEARCH

93.847 10,621

93.847 235,058 22,621

93.847 34,952

93.859 131,575

93.859 15,724

Subtotal 1,466,490        396,972          

93.865 491,729 112,035

93.865 13,961

Subtotal 505,690 112,035

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

93.U08 19,709

Subtotal 19,709

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

93.U11 119,655

Subtotal 119,655

2,111,544 509,007

US Agency for International Development:

USAID FOREIGN ASSISTANCE FOR PROGRAMS OVERSEAS

98.001 74,382

Subtotal 74,382

74,382

15,799,735 1,479,741

DAIRY BUSINESS INNOVATION INITIATIVE - PACIFIC COAST COALITION

Pass Through CSU FRESNO  (CSU FRE) 10.176 SC351120-22-03 254,919

Subtotal 254,919

10.220 2022-38413-38359 40,536

Subtotal 40,536

TRANSITION TO ORGANIC PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (TOPP)

10.462 41,314

Subtotal 41,314

10.723 47,911

Subtotal 47,911

384,679

11.307 220,374

Subtotal 220,374

220,374

Pass Through THE RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF FOX CHASE CANCER CENTER  1519300

Pass Through OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY  (OHA) 182566

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES RESEARCH

MULTICULTURAL SCHOLARS

BIOMEDICAL RESEARCH AND RESEARCH TRAINING

Pass Through REGENTS OF THE UNIV OF COLORADO, COLORADO SPRINGS  

Pass Through ARIZONA STATE UNIV  (ASU)

FCCC15126-01

Pass Through LOUISIANA ST UNIVERSITY  (LSU)

Pass Through REGENTS UNIVERSITY OF CA, SAN FRANCISCO  (UCSF) 14425SC

ASUB00001599

13640SC

Pass Through LOUISIANA ST UNIVERSITY  (LSU) DK124806-2019-192-CPC01

DK124806-2400XX-CP02

Pass Through THE RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF FOX CHASE CANCER CENTER  

Pass Through ARIZONA STATE UNIV  (ASU) ASUB00000397

Pass Through 21ST CENTURY PARTNERSHIP FOR STEM ED  (PSTEM)

IT34GM149492-01

CHILD HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT EXTRAMURAL RESEARCH

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN  (UNIV MI) SUBK00012458

22-105-001

Pass Through WESTAT INC  (WESTAT) 6682-S01

Department of Commerce:

Department of Agriculture:

Total Department of Agriculture

Pass Through CALIFORNIA CERTIFIED ORGANIC FARMERS  (CCOF FDN)

72026318C0003-007

COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING - CONGRESSIONALLY DESIGNATED FUNDING

Total Research and Development Cluster of Programs

1UG3HL163508

07-79-07500

Total Department of Commerce

ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT ASSISTANCE

Pass Through SENTIMETRIX INC  (SENTIMET) SMXCP23-425

Total US Department of Health and Human Services

22-DG-11052012-131

TRANS TO ORGANIC PARTSHP

Total US Agency for International Development

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES RESEARCH 1U01HL114377-01

Pass Through SEATTLE CHILDRENS RESEARCH INSTITUTE  (SCRI) 13143SUB

1R01HD104773-01A1

Pass Through REGENTS UNIVERSITY OF CA, SAN FRANCISCO  (UCSF)

See accompanying notes to the schedule of federal awards . 14



Federal Grantor/ Program Title/ Pass Through Grantor

Federal 

ALN

Agency or 

Pass-through 

Number

Federal 

Expenditures

Expenditures 

to 

Subrecipient

CAL POLY CORPORATION DBA CAL POLY PARTNERS
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

15.037 571,051$         38,726$          

Subtotal 571,051 38,726

571,051 38,726

21.008 112,387

21.008 76,642

Subtotal 189,029

VOLUNTEER INCOME TAX ASSISTANCE (VITA) MATCHING GRANT PROGRAM

21.009 2,955                

Subtotal 2,955

CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS

21.027 4,781,971 2,329,850

21.027 458,855

Subtotal 5,240,826 2,329,850

5,432,810 2,329,850

US Small Business Administration:

SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTERS

59.037 224,282

59.037 47,900

Subtotal 272,183           - 

272,183

84.042 186,250

84.047A 401,842

Subtotal 588,092

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION - BASIC GRANTS TO STATES

84.048A 1,127

84.048A 11,874

Subtotal 13,001

OERTRANSPORT: ENABLING TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROFESSIONAL ADVANCEMENT

84.116 42,002

Subtotal 42,002

84.336 402,964 51,263

84.336 578,907

Subtotal 981,871 51,263

SUPPORTING EFFECTIVE INSTRUCTION STATE GRANTS

84.367A 679

84.367A 43,000

Subtotal 43,679

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

84.U07 625

Subtotal 625

1,669,269 51,263

Corporation for National & Community Service:

AMERICORPS STATE AND NATIONAL

94.006 3,727

94.006 118,969

Subtotal 122,696

122,696

24,472,797$   3,899,580$    

WATER RESOURCES ON INDIAN LAND

Total Department of Interior

Department of the Treasury:

Pass Through COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISP  (CO SLO) N/A

Pass Through UNITED WAY SB COUNTY  (UNT WAY SB) 22VITA0063

Pass Through CA VOLUNTEERS  (CA VOL) CCSFRF001

Total Department of the Treasury

Pass Through UNIV CA-MERCED REG NETWORK  (UC MRCED) A23-0081-S001

23-LITC0500-03-00

Department of Interior:

A19AC00033

LOW INCOME TAXPAYER CLINICS

Total US Small Business Administration

US Department of Education:

P042A200970

Pass Through UNIV CA-MERCED REG NETWORK  (UC MRCED) A24-0076-S002

TRIO STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES

P047A221020TRIO UPWARD BOUND

Pass Through CA DEPT OF EDUCATION  (CA DED) CN210041

Pass Through CA DEPT OF EDUCATION  (CA DED) CN230094

Pass Through UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS ARLINGTON  (UNIV ARL) 2021GC0308

U336S180010

S336S200007TEACHER QUALITY PARTNERSHIP GRANTS

TEACHER QUALITY PARTNERSHIP GRANTS

Pass Through NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDU  (NAPA COE) 22-516

Pass Through UC REGENTS OFFICE PRES  (UC REG1) ESSA22-CSP-SAN LUIS OBISP

Pass Through UC REGENTS OFFICE PRES  (UC REG1) ESSA23-CSP-SAN LUIS OBISP

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards:

Total Corporation for National & Community Service

Pass Through ATTAINMENT COMPANY INC  (ATTAINMENT) 21-426

Total US Department of Education

Pass Through NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDU  (NAPA COE) 23-355

LOW INCOME TAXPAYER CLINICS 24-LITC0673-01-00

See accompanying notes to the schedule of federal awards . 15
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Note 1:   Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal award activity of Cal 
Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners (the Corporation) under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2024.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance.  Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Corporation, it is 
not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Corporation. 

Note 2:   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown 
on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as 
expenditures in prior years.  Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.  

Note 3:   Indirect Cost Rate 

The Corporation has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance, but rather the rates established directly with the respective federal agencies.  
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section I:   Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

(a) Type of auditors’ report issued on financial statements:  Unmodified.

(b) Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified:  No.
• Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses:  None Reported.

(c) Noncompliance material to financial statements noted:  No.

Federal Awards 

(d) Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified:  No.
• Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses:  None Reported.

(e) Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:  Unmodified.

(f) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a):  No.

(g) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $750,000

(h) Major Programs:

• Dairy Business Innovation Initiative (ALN 10.176)

• Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (ALN 21.027)
• Teacher Quality Partnership Grants (ALN 84.336)

(i) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee:  Yes.
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners  
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 
Page 2 

Section II:   Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are Required to be Reported in 
Accordance With Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing Standards 

We noted no findings in the current year. 

Section III:   Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards  

We noted no findings in the current year. 
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Cal Poly Corporation dba Cal Poly Partners  
Status of Prior Year's Findings and Questioned Costs – June 30, 2023 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

We noted no findings in the prior year. 




